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AUTHORITY, PURPOSE, AND SCOPE OF WORK 
 
1. Authority & Purpose 

 
The California Department of Housing and Community Development (hereinafter 
“Department” or “HCD”) is the lead and responsible entity for administering the 
Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery (hereinafter “CDBG-DR”) 
funds appropriated under the Supplemental Appropriations for Disaster Relief 
Requirements (Appropriations Act), under United States Public Laws 115-56, 115-
123, 115-254, and 116-20 to provide assistance in long-term recovery from the 
following 2017 and 2018 qualified federally declared natural disasters: DR-4344, DR-
4353, DR-4382, and DR-4407. 

 
2. Scope of Agreement 

 
A. Grant Funds 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Standard Agreement (hereinafter 
“Agreement”), the Department has allocated and agrees to provide grant 
funds in the maximum amount identified in Exhibit B, Section 1 – Budget 
herein to the subrecipient identified as “Contractor” on page 1, Section 1 of 
the STD 213 form (hereinafter “Subrecipient”) for all Work (defined below) 
identified in this Agreement (hereinafter “Subrecipient Award”).  All payments 
made to the Subrecipient will adhere to the provisions described in Exhibit B 
herein. In no instance shall the Department be liable for any costs in excess 
of this amount, nor for any unauthorized or ineligible costs or expenses.  
 

 
B. Implementation of Agreement 
 

By entering into this Agreement and thereby accepting the Award of grant 
funds, the Subrecipient agrees to comply with and implement this Agreement 
in a manner satisfactory to the Department and HUD and consistent with all 
applicable laws, regulations, policies and procedures as may be required from 
time to time as a condition of the Department providing the grant funds, 
including but not limited to, all applicable CDBG-DR Program Administration 
and Compliance requirements set forth by this Agreement, and in accordance 
with the Application documentation previously provided by the Subrecipient 
and made a part hereof. The Department’s providing of grant funds under this 
Agreement is specifically conditioned on Subrecipient’s compliance with this 
provision and all terms and conditions of this Agreement, as well as the final 
Program policies and procedures, once completed, and the most recently 
published version of the Department’s CDBG-DR Action Plan for 2017 
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disasters (https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/disaster-recovery-
programs/cdbg-dr/docs/March-2019-HCD-CDBG-DR-ActionPlan-
APPROVED.pdf) and for 2018 disasters (https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-
development/disaster-recovery-programs/cdbg-dr/cdbg-dr-2018/docs/HCD-
CDBG-DR-2018_AP-Final-ADA-English.pdf) and any amendments thereto, 
related Federal Register notices, and the requirements of the authorities cited 
above, as the same may be amended from time to time.  
 
This Agreement is subject to written modification and termination as 
necessary by the Department in accordance with requirements contained in 
any future state or federal legislation and/or state or federal regulations. All 
other modifications must be in written form and approved by both parties. 

 
3. Subrecipient Scope of Work 

 
A. The Subrecipient shall provide the funded housing counseling activities 

(hereinafter “Work”) as described in 24 CFR, part 214 to ReCoverCA 
Homeowner Assistance program clients to assist them in improving their housing 
conditions and in meeting the responsibilities of tenancy or homeownership, as 
well as assisting clients in determining if rebuilding, homeownership, or tenancy 
is the best outcome for them. The housing counseling activities shall consist of: 

 
i. Counseling.  The Subrecipient must offer and be able to provide 

counseling, as opposed to just education, to current and potential 
homeowners or tenants to assist them in improving their housing 
conditions and in meeting the responsibilities of homeownership or 
tenancy. Participating agencies must provide counseling on the topics 
outlined in Section 3(D) herein. 

 
ii. Education. All Subrecipients that offer group educational sessions must 

also offer individual counseling on the same topics covered in the group 
educational sessions. 

 
iii. Setting/Format. HCD will refer clients to the Subrecipient based on where, 

geographically, the client is currently located. Counseling services may 
take place in the office of the Subrecipient, at an alternate location (for 
example at a public library), or through an alternative format, as long as 
the alternative format or location is mutually acceptable to the housing 
counselor and client. Alternative formats can include telephonic 
counseling or remote counseling systems designed using virtual meeting 
technology such as Skype, Teams, Zoom, etc., video cameras and the 
internet. Virtual meeting technology systems can also be used to deliver 
group education workshops and sessions. If a referred client requests in-

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/disaster-recovery-programs/cdbg-dr/docs/March-2019-HCD-CDBG-DR-ActionPlan-APPROVED.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/disaster-recovery-programs/cdbg-dr/docs/March-2019-HCD-CDBG-DR-ActionPlan-APPROVED.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/disaster-recovery-programs/cdbg-dr/docs/March-2019-HCD-CDBG-DR-ActionPlan-APPROVED.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/disaster-recovery-programs/cdbg-dr/cdbg-dr-2018/docs/HCD-CDBG-DR-2018_AP-Final-ADA-English.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/disaster-recovery-programs/cdbg-dr/cdbg-dr-2018/docs/HCD-CDBG-DR-2018_AP-Final-ADA-English.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/disaster-recovery-programs/cdbg-dr/cdbg-dr-2018/docs/HCD-CDBG-DR-2018_AP-Final-ADA-English.pdf
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person counseling in a geography outside of the in-person geographic 
service area specified by the Subrecipient in Exhibit F, the Subrecipient 
will immediately inform HCD and HCD shall refer the client to a housing 
counseling service provider that provides in-person services in the client’s 
geographic area. 

 
iv. Work Plan. A Subrecipient must be in compliance with the scope of work 

as described in Section 3(D) herein as well as the approved work plan set 
forth in the Subrecipient’s application included in the Agreement herein 
labeled Exhibit F.  The Subrecipient shall deliver housing counseling 
services consistent with the Subrecipient’s housing counseling work plan 
which must address all items listed here in Section 3. 

 
v. Geographic Scope. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Subrecipient 

has specified in their response to the Housing Counseling Notice of 
Funding Availability (NOFA), herein and set forth in Exhibit F, the 
geographic scope they will provide in-person services and remote services 
in and must provide all Work in those areas. 

 
vi. Civil Rights. The Subrecipient must administer their housing counseling 

programs in accordance with and remain in compliance with all 
corresponding State and Federal regulations and guidance and the 
following nondiscrimination regulatory and legislative requirements: 

 
a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
b. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 
c. Executive Order 11063, 
d. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
e. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
f. Americans with Disabilities 
g. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. 
h. The Fair Employment and Housing Act (federal) 
i. The Unruh Civile Rights Act of 1959 
j. California Fair Employment and Housing Act 
 

The California requirements expand upon the federal requirements and 
are designed to prevent discrimination in the delivery of benefits and 
services because of race, color, religion, sex/gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, sexual orientation, marital status, medical condition, 
military or veteran status, national origin, ancestry, disability (mental and 
physical), genetic information, or age (over 40). 
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vii. Fair Housing. In accordance with Section 808(e)(5) of the Fair Housing 
Act, the Subrecipient must affirmatively further fair housing for classes 
protected under the Fair Housing Act (Protected classes include race, 
color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, and familial status.) the 
Subrecipient is expected to help remedy discrimination in housing and 
promote fair housing rights and fair housing choice. 
 

viii. Accessibility and Facilities. In accordance with 24 CFR 214.103 the 
Subrecipient, its branches, affiliates, and sub-grantees must (1) Have a 
clearly identified office, with space available for the provision of housing 
counseling services. The office should operate during normal business 
hours and offer extended hours when necessary; (2) Provide privacy for 
in-person counseling and confidentiality of client records; (3) Provide 
accessibility features or make alternative accommodations for persons 
with disabilities, in accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), 24 CFR parts 8 and 9, and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq). 

 
ix. Religious Discrimination and Influence. The Subrecipient and their 

affiliates and branches are prohibited from:(1) discriminating on behalf of 
or against any segment of the population in the provision of services or 
outreach, including those of other religious affiliations; and, (2) requiring 
religious instructions or religious counseling, conducting mandatory 
religious services or worship, engaging in religious proselytizing, and 
exerting religious influence in the provision of assistance under the 
Subrecipient’s or its affiliate’s or branch’s housing counseling Work.  

 
x. Limited English Proficiency (LEP). The Subrecipient must make 

reasonable efforts to provide language assistance to persons who are 
LEP. See guidance in “Final Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance 
Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin 
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons” published in 
the Federal Register on January 22, 2007, or an updated version, to 
determine the extent of the assistance the Subrecipient should offer based 
on the client’s circumstances. 

 
All clients referred to the Subrecipient by the ReCoverCA Homeownership 
Assistance program must be served. In cases where the Subrecipient 
does not offer the unique services requested by the client, is unable to 
communicate effectively with the client or does not have sufficient 
resources, the Subrecipient must inform the ReCoverCA Homeownership 
Assistance program immediately.   
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B. Client Intake.  The Subrecipient’s housing counselor(s) or administrative staff 

who is/are trained in requirements of the Privacy Act may obtain basic 
information to determine if the Subrecipient can assist a client referred by the 
ReCoverCA Homeownership Assistance Program, schedule an appointment with 
a housing counselor or refer the potential client to other resources. This client 
intake process is not housing counseling. 

 
C. Information Dissemination and Correspondence. In accordance with 24 CFR 8.6 

(Effective Communication and 214.103(l)(3)), Subrecipients should indicate on 
correspondence materials disseminated to clients and prospective clients how to 
access information through alternative means if they have an impairment, 
disability, or language barrier, etc. For example, written communications may 
include instructions on how to contact the Subrecipient via TTY, Relay services 
or access translation or interpreter services. Additionally, written communication 
should ask clients and prospective clients whether they need assistance for 
mobility impairments, visual or hearing impairments or other disabilities. 
 

D. Counseling Services. In order for a client to be classified as counseled under 
HUD’s Housing Counseling program, the client must receive all of the basic 
services outlined in 24 CFR §214.300(6)(b) and Items i – iv below. A housing 
counselor must perform and document these activities. 

 
i. Housing counseling. The client must have received counseling on at least 

one of the topics described in subparagraph I below that enables them to 
make informed and reasonable decisions to achieve his or her housing 
goal. 

 
ii. Discussion of Alternatives. Counseling must include a reasonable 

discussion of alternatives and options available to the client. To 
accomplish this, counselors may discuss specific products, features, 
properties or programs. 

 
For example, this type of discussion may occur if a recipient of pre-
purchase counseling asks questions about a specific loan product or 
feature, or if the counselor feels that having information about a specific 
product, feature, property or program is in the best interest of the client. 
 
However, if a counselor discusses specific products, features, properties 
or programs, they must provide at least three reasonable and comparable 
alternatives. Therefore, in the example provided the counselor should 
have given the client the opportunity to consider products from at least 
three different lenders. 
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Additionally, when discussing specific loan products or features, at least 
one of the alternatives discussed by the counselor must be Federal 
Housing Administration (FHA) products or features, the Federal 
Government’s safe and affordable options for home finance. 

 
Counselors must not advise clients, or promote specific products, features 
or programs. Their role is to simply make counseling recipients aware of 
their options and empower them with the information they need to help 
them make smart choices. Any discussion of alternative options should be 
documented in client files.  
 

iii. Action Plan. Housing counselors and clients must establish an action plan. 
The action plan outlines what the housing counselor and the client will do 
in order to meet the client’s housing goals and, when appropriate, 
addresses the client’s housing problem(s). 

 
iv. Financial Analysis. Every housing counseling session requires an analysis 

of the client’s unique financial situation. This includes but is not limited to:  
 

a) A review of the client's income, expenses, spending habits, home 
values and use of credit.  

 
b) A comparative analysis of the client’s spending habits to determine if 

the client’s habits are more suitable for renting than owning.  
 

c) The establishment of a household budget that the client can afford.  
 

E. Referrals. If a Subrecipient is unable to provide a service and the Subrecipient is 
aware of a local, state, and federal resource that would help meet the client’s 
needs, the Subrecipient should make the ReCoverCA Homeownership 
Assistance program aware of this and make referrals to such resources. 
Referrals made by counselors should be documented in the client file. Examples 
of referrals may include social service programs, energy assistance programs, 
fair housing agencies, legal services, etc. In no event or circumstance will the 
Department have any liability to the client or any other party for any referrals 
made by the Subrecipient. 

 
F. Follow-up. Subrecipients must make a reasonable effort to have follow-up 

communication with the client, to assure that the client is progressing toward his 
or her housing goal, to modify or terminate housing counseling, and to learn and 
report outcomes. Client follow-up should be conducted by a qualified housing 
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counselor. Per the most recently published version of the ReCoverCA Housing 
Counseling Policies and Procedures.  
 

G. Client File. Set up a confidential client file documenting the activities required by 
this Work in accordance with applicable HUD approved housing counseling 
program requirements. 

 
H. Termination of Counseling. In alignment with Sections F and G, herein, the 

Subrecipient must document in the client’s file when housing counseling services 
are terminated. The housing counselor must notate the client’s file with the date 
and cause/explanation of termination. Client files must not remain open 
indefinitely. All terminations of counseling must follow the requirements as set 
forth in the most recently published version of the ReCoverCA Housing 
Counseling Policies and Procedures and associated federal requirements for 
contact attempts, form of contact attempts and documentation.  
 
NOTE: Pursuant to Exhibit B, Section 3A, if the Subrecipient does not have any 
client contact within a 90-day period, the Subrecipient must not bill or count the 
nonresponsive client as an active file against any future billing periods.  

 
The Subrecipient should not bill a client file against this ReCoverCA Housing 
Counseling Grant or continue to count the file as activity under the grant solely 
because the Subrecipient maintains the file in an open status. Actual counseling, 
education, preparation, or follow-up activity must occur to justify billing the 
ReCoverCA Housing Counseling Grant. If a client file remains open over multiple 
reporting cycles or quarters, the initial counseling or education activity is only 
billed once against the Housing Counseling Grant, in the quarter it occurred. 
Even if follow-up occurs in the next billing cycle, it is still a part of the initial 
counseling interaction already recorded in the previous quarter and must not be 
counted again. The Subrecipient can, however, bill the grant for follow-up activity 
that occurs as part of subsequent sessions.  

 
Termination of counseling occurs or may occur under any of these conditions:  
1. The client meets his or her housing need and the client has been referred to 

the appropriate ReCoverCA Homeownership Assistance program, or along 
with the client, determines, tenancy is the best housing option;  

2. The Subrecipient determines that further housing counseling will not meet the 
client's housing need or resolve the client's housing problem;  

3. The Subrecipient attempts to, but is unable to locate the client;  
4. The client does not follow the agreed upon action plan;  
5. The client otherwise terminates housing counseling;  
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6. Client fails to appear for housing counseling appointments or fails to respond 
to Subrecipient inquiries concerning the client’s progress in resolving his or 
her housing need or problem within the timeframe and protocols set forth in 
the most recently published version of the ReCoverCA Housing Counseling 
Policies and Procedures; or  

7. Other circumstances beyond the participating Subrecipient’s or client’s control 
such as a natural disaster that might prevent continuation of counseling.  

I. Approved Housing Counseling, Education topics. The following are examples of 
approved housing counseling, education topics that the Subrecipient may provide 
to, and discuss with, clients:  

 
i. Pre-Purchase/Home Buying/Home Reconstruction. This includes but is 

not limited to: advice regarding readiness and preparation for maintaining 
homeownership following reconstruction, and/or new homeownership; 
Federal Housing Administration insured financing; housing selection and 
mobility; search assistance; fair housing, fair lending and predatory 
lending; budgeting and credit; loan product and feature comparison; 
purchase procedures and closing costs; money management (does not 
include debt management plan programs); selecting a real estate agent; 
and home inspection. Home maintenance and financial management for 
homeowners including the preservation of accessible housing features. 
 
This also may include guidance on: alternative sources of mortgage credit; 
down payment assistance; locating housing that provides universal design 
and visibility; how to apply for special programs available to potential 
homebuyers; how to purchase a home using the Section 8 
Homeownership Voucher Program; and referrals to community services 
and regulatory agencies.  

 
Additionally, for homeownership or tenancy, counseling must include 
guidance on homeowner and rental insurance for multiple perils and/or 
standalone fire insurance such as the California Fair Plan. Counseling will 
include the different coverage levels and features including value 
coverage, replacement coverage, extended replacement coverage, and 
additional living expenses coverage, as well as providing information on 
what the different coverages mean in terms of the ability to recover from 
another fire or disaster, what the cost is, and how that cost may impact the 
client’s finances.  

 
ii. Resolving or Preventing Mortgage Delinquency or Default. This includes 

but is not limited to the consequences of default and foreclosure; loss 
mitigation, budgeting, and credit; restructuring debt; obtaining re-
certification for mortgage subsidy; and establishing reinstatement plans. It 
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may also include helping clients affected by predatory lending; foreclosure 
prevention strategies; explaining the foreclosure process; providing 
referrals to other sources; and assisting clients with locating alternative 
housing.  

 
The earlier that the housing counselor and lender establishes contact with 
the client, identifies the cause of default and begins to discuss 
reinstatement options, the more likely it is that the default will be cured, 
and the homeowner will be able to retain ownership. Efforts to assist the 
client should ideally begin as soon as the loan becomes delinquent. The 
housing counselor should conduct follow-up housing counseling with the 
client on an as-needed basis until the default is corrected or the mortgage 
lender completes foreclosure, and the client has found alternate housing.  

 
iii. Non-Delinquency Post-Purchase, including Improving Mortgage Terms 

and Home Improvement. Home maintenance and financial management 
for homeowners, including, but not limited to: escrow funds; budgeting; 
refinancing; home equity; home improvement; insurance costs; utility 
costs; energy efficiency; and rights and responsibilities of home owners.  

 
It may also include: loan and grant options; housing codes and housing 
enforcement procedures; accessibility codes and how to design features 
to provide accessibility for persons with disabilities; non-discriminatory 
lending and funding for persons who modify their dwellings to 
accommodate disabilities; visibility and universal design; how to specify 
and bid construction work; and how to enter into and manage construction 
contracts including actions to address the non-performance of contractors.  

 
iv. Locating, Securing, or Maintaining Residence in Rental Housing. This 

refers to rental topics including, but not limited to: HUD rental and rent 
subsidy programs; other federal, state, or local rental assistance; fair 
housing; housing search assistance; landlord tenant laws; lease terms; 
rent delinquency; budgeting for rent payments and renters insurance; and 
providing assistance with locating alternate housing.  

 
v. Homeless Assistance. This includes but is not limited to information 

regarding emergency shelter; other emergency services; and transitional 
housing. 

 
J. Fair Housing and Other Civil Rights Requirements and Guidance  

 
i. Nondiscrimination under 24 CFR §§ 5.105 and 214.503  
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Pursuant to 24 CFR § 214.503, all participating agencies must comply 
with HUD‟s general nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirements 
at 24 CFR § 5.105. For additional information on fair housing, please visit 
the Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity (FHEO) on HUD‟s 
website at www.hud.gov.  
 

ii. Promoting Fair Housing and Protecting Civil Rights. All participating 
agencies must take reasonable steps to affirmatively further fair housing 
and to ensure that persons are not denied housing counseling services or 
treated differently on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, 
disability, or familial status:  

 
iii. Identify Impediments to Fair Housing Choice. Participating agencies 

should review the Consolidated Plan and Analysis of Impediments (AI) 
that cover the jurisdictions in their service area. Another activity that 
participating agencies may undertake to identify barriers to fair housing 
choice is a review of their own policies, procedures, and facilities to see if 
they pose barriers to particular groups receiving housing counseling 
services.  

 
iv. Fair Housing Counseling and Education Activities. The following are 

examples of fair housing counseling, education, and outreach topics that 
participating agencies may provide to, and discuss with, clients in 
accordance with HUD‟s regulations at 24 CFR § 214.300 – especially 
clients in groups that have experienced impediments to fair housing 
choice:  

 
1. Pre-purchase/Home buying-- including, but not limited to: advice 

regarding readiness and preparation, fair housing rights of clients, 
identifying housing and lending discrimination and predatory lending;  

2. Resolving or preventing mortgage delinquency-- including, but not 
limited to: default and foreclosure, rights of clients, identifying 
discriminatory or predatory loan terms, loss mitigation, budgeting, and 
credit;  

3. Home maintenance and financial management for homeowners-- 
including, the preservation of accessible housing features; and  

4. Rental topics-- including, but not limited to: HUD rental and rent 
subsidy programs; other federal, state or local assistance; fair housing 
laws; housing search assistance; landlord tenant laws; lease terms; 
rights of Subrecipients and clients, rent delinquency; reasonable 
accommodations and modifications for persons with disabilities.  

http://www.hud.gov/
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v. Responsibilities of intermediaries and sub grantees--- HUD funded 
grant recipients are obligated under various laws not to discriminate in 
housing or services directly or indirectly based on race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, familial status, or disability. HUD regulations further require 
that recipients of Federal financial assistance comply with Civil Rights-
Related Program Requirements (CRRPRs) that affect nearly every aspect 
of each program. The Subrecipient must adhere to these CRRPRs 
whether they receive Federal financial assistance or not as a condition of 
their participation in ReCoverCA Housing Counseling Program.) All 
intermediaries and sub grantees are held to the same nondiscrimination 
and equal opportunity responsibilities of direct recipients of ReCoverCA 
Housing Counseling Services program funds or resources, including but 
not limited to:  

 
1. Maintaining records and actions taken.  
2. Training of staff with applicable civil rights laws and their applications.  
3. Counseling and Education and Activities.  

 
Contracts and agreements between the Subrecipient and their affiliates or 
sub grantees, if any, must include terms to this effect.  
 

vi. How to File a Discrimination Complaint with HUD. For complaints 
under the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. § 3601, et seq.) (nondiscrimination 
because of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, disability, or familial 
status), clients of the Subrecipient and the ReCoverCA Homeownership 
Assistance program may file a discrimination complaint if they believe that 
they have been subjected to unlawful discrimination. The Subrecipient or a 
client’s representative may file a complaint on the client’s behalf. For 
complaints filed with HUD, the complaint must be filed no later than one 
year after the last alleged discriminatory act occurred.  

 
If a Subrecipient has a client that needs fair housing assistance the 
Subrecipient should refer the client to a state, county, or municipal fair 
housing agency. Discrimination complaints that arise in a jurisdiction that 
administers a law that HUD has certified as substantially equivalent to the 
Fair Housing Act will be referred by HUD to the respective state or local 
government agency. For these certified agencies, the statute of limitations 
for filing a complaint may vary. For other civil rights complaints such as: 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national origin, codified at 
24 C.F.R. part 1); Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (prohibits 
discrimination based on disability in any program or activity receiving 
federal financial assistance, codified at 24 C.F.R. part 8); and Executive 
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Order 11063 (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, 
national origin and sex, codified, 24 C.F.R. part 107), clients of 
participating agencies may file a discrimination complaint if they believe 
that they have been subjected to unlawful discrimination. Participating 
agencies or a client’s representative may file a complaint on the client’s 
behalf.  
 
Complaints filed pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 shall be filed within 180 days of the 
alleged act of discrimination, unless the time limit is extended for good 
cause shown. Complaints filed pursuant to Executive Order 11063 must 
be filed within one year of date of the alleged act of discrimination unless 
the time for filing is extended by the Assistant Secretary for FHEO. 
  
HUD offers multiple ways to file a complaint. The client, Subrecipient or a 
representative may: (1) File a written complaint with the nearest HUD 
office; or (2) Call the nearest HUD office or (3) Use the following link to 
access HUD‟s Fair Housing complaint form: 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/nov108online-complaint.cfm. Please note 
that the TTY numbers listed for those offices are not toll free, or call the 
toll free national TTY hotline at 1-800-927-9275. Please contact HUD‟s 
Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity for additional information at 
1-800-669-9777 or for the hearing impaired TTY 1 (800) 927-9275. A list 
of HUD local offices is available at 
http://www.hud.gov/complaints/housediscrim.cfm.  
 

K. Industry Standards. HCD may require, promote or incentivize the adoption of, 
and implementation of, housing counseling and education standards, by the 
Subrecipient. These standards may include minimum acceptable counseling and 
education content and activities, training and testing. These industry standards 
may be developed or implemented by HUD or by other entities and endorsed by 
HCD. 

 
L. Debt Management or Liquidation. HCD considers debt management service as 

an activity related to, but apart from, the ReCoverCA Housing Counseling 
Program process. Negotiating payment plans with creditors and handling the 
client's money and making payment to the creditors for the client are usually 
done under a separate client-counselor contract. If the Subrecipient provides this 
service, the Subrecipient must assure HCD in writing that they comply with all 
state and local laws, including agency bonding, that govern these services. Fees 
charged for this service must meet HUD’s guidelines and are not related to or 
connected in any way at all to the ReCoverCA Housing Counseling Program 
being funded through this Agreement. HCD recognizes that a client may enter a 

http://www.hud.gov/complaints/housediscrim.cfm
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debt management plan as a result of housing counseling. Administration of client 
debt management plans is not housing counseling and must not be included in 
an Subrecipient’s housing counseling work plan or counseling activity reporting. 
The Department shall have no liability or obligation of any nature arising from the 
provision of any debt management services to a client by a Subrecipient or any 
of its housing counselors. 

 
M. Knowledge of HUD Programs. The Subrecipient's housing counselors must have 

an up-to-date working knowledge of HUD housing and fair housing programs 
including FHA Single Family mortgage programs.  

 
N. Referrals to Community Resources. The Subrecipient must have established 

working relationships with private and public service agencies or provide HCD 
with a plan to actively develop and engage local public service agencies in the 
geographic area the Subrecipient is completing the Work in, and commensurate 
with the timing of the Work as described in Exhibit F, that could assist clients, 
when additional services not offered by the Subrecipient are needed. 

 
O. Discussion of For-Profit Entities. Helping clients resolve their housing problems 

may include discussing for-profit entities such as lenders or real estate 
professionals. If a client requests information or asks questions about a particular 
for-profit entity, or if the counselor feels that having information about a specific 
for-profit entity is in the best interest of the client, the Subrecipient may discuss 
the entity but must also identify and discuss a minimum of three reasonable 
alternative for-profit entities, if available.  

 
In the case of lenders, the alternatives must include a discussion of FHA 
mortgage insurance programs and features.  
 

NOTE: Counselors must not advise clients or promote specific for-profit entities. Their role 
is to simply make counseling recipients aware of their options and arm them with the 
information they need to help them make smart choices. Safeguards and disclosures must 
be used as described in The HUD Housing Counseling Handbook 7610.1 REV-5 Chapter 
6, Paragraphs 6-1, Items F and G to avoid conflict of interest. 

 
 

P. The Subrecipient shall perform the funded housing counseling activities 
described herein. All written materials or alterations submitted as addenda to the 
original Application, and which are approved in writing by the Department are 
hereby incorporated as part of the Application as set forth in Exhibit F. The 
Department reserves the right to require the Subrecipient to modify any or all 
parts of the Application in order to comply with CDBG-DR and ReCoverCA 
Homeownership Assistance program requirements. The Department reserves 
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the right to monitor all Work to be performed by the Subrecipient, its contractors, 
and subgrantees in relation to this Agreement. Any proposed revision to the 
Work must be submitted in writing for review and approval by the Department 
and may require an amendment to this Agreement. Approval shall not be 
presumed unless such approval is made by the Department in writing. 
  

Q. For the purposes of performing the Work, the Department agrees to provide the 
amount(s) identified in Exhibit B Budget. Unless amended, the Department shall 
not be liable for any costs in excess of the total approved budget. The 
Department shall not, under any conditions, be liable for any unauthorized or 
ineligible costs or costs not deemed reasonable and necessary by the Program 
(see Definitions in Exhibit D).    

 
R. Housing Counseling Work carried out pursuant to this contract shall meet one of 

the two CDBG-DR National Objectives:  
 

1. Benefit to Low/Moderate Income Persons; or 
2. Urgent Need  

 
S. Subrecipient shall collect data and submit reports to the Department in 

accordance with the reporting requirements detailed in Exhibit D.  

   
T. If the Subrecipient uses subcontractors to carry out the Work, the Subrecipient 

shall monitor all housing counseling activities in accordance with the 
requirements of 2 CFR 200.300-200.346. 

 
4. Effective Date and Commencement of Work 

 
A. This Agreement is effective upon approval by the Department 

representative’s signature on page one of the fully executed Standard 
Agreement, STD 213 (the “Effective Date”).   

 
B. Subrecipient agrees that no Work toward the implementation of the Program 

activity or program activity, as identified herein, shall commence prior to the 
execution of this Agreement by the Department without prior written 
authorization from the Department . 

 
5. Term of Agreement and Performance Milestones 

 
A. Term of Agreement:  
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All grant funds, including grant closeout, must be expended by: 08/15/2025, 
unless expressly extended by the department in writing. If CDBG-DR 
activity funds are not expended by the aforementioned deadline, the 
Department reserves the right to disencumber the Subrecipient’s Award 
amount in this Agreement by the amount then unspent. 

 
 

This Agreement will expire on:  08/15/2025  
 
B. Performance Milestones: Subrecipient shall adhere to the performance 

milestones below. Time is of the essence with respect to all such milestones. 
 

1. Subrecipient must submit monthly report data. The contents of the 
report shall comply with the requirements set out in Exhibit D. 
 

2. All HCD-referred clients must be contacted within 7 calendar days from 
the date of referral. 

 
3. Subrecipient will make every effort to ensure completion of the client’s 

action plan within 90 calendar days from the date of referral. 
Subrecipient will report on the progress of all clients whose action 
plans have not been completed within 90 calendar days. 

 
 

Failure to meet performance milestones: 
 

If any performance milestones listed above are not met, the 
Department reserves the right to withhold further payments to 
Subrecipient until such time as satisfactory progress is made toward 
meeting the performance measures. Subrecipient shall diligently work 
with CDBG-DR staff to submit: (a) a written mitigation plan specifying 
the reason for the delay; (b) the actions to be taken to complete the 
task that is the subject of the missed measure deadline; and, (c) the 
date by which the completion of said task will occur. 

  
The Department reserves the right to reallocate unobligated grant 
funds within the CDBG-DR program, in its sole and absolute discretion 
if the Department determines the Subrecipient is unable to meet the 
performance milestones in a timely manner following the failure to 
meet said milestones. The Department reserves all rights and 
remedies available to it in case of a default by Subrecipient of its 
responsibilities and obligations under the terms of this Agreement. All 
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remedies available to the Department are cumulative and not 
exclusive. 

 
C. The Subrecipient and its Contractors, as applicable, shall adhere to all 

Program performance and milestones as established above. 
 
8. CDBG-DR Program Contract Management 

 
A. Department Contract Manager: The Department Contract Manager for this 

Agreement is the CDBG-DR OOR Program Manager or the Program 
Manager’s designee. Written communication regarding this Agreement shall 
be directed to the Department Contract Manager at the following address:  

 
CA Department of Housing and Community Development 
Division of Financial Assistance – Disaster Recovery Branch 
P.O. Box 952054      
Sacramento, CA  94252-2054 

 
B. Contract Management: Day-to-day administration of this Agreement shall take 

place via Grants Network, including but not limited to: 
  

1. Financial Reports (Funds Requests) 
2. Activity Reports 
3. Other Reports, as required 
4. Submittal of any and all requested supporting documentation 
5. Standard Agreement Issuance and Amendments 

 

C. Subrecipient Contract Administrator: The Subrecipient Contract Administrator 
(must be a Subrecipient employee) is identified in the Profile attached to 
Exhibit F. Unless otherwise directed by the Department, any notice, report, or 
other communication required by this Agreement shall be directed via Grants 
Network or written to the Subrecipient’s Contract Administrator. 
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BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
1. Budget 
 

A. Budget Detail: The activity shall follow the budget as detailed in Exhibit E, 
Section VI. 
 

B. Program Income: All Program Income is considered a part of state administered 
CDBG-DR funding and is subject to the same federal requirements for financial 
administration as grant awards. Program Income, including both cash-on-hand 
and future projected receipts, if identified as a funding source for any given activity, 
must be included in the activity budget and must be substantially expended prior to 
drawing grant award funds. Program Income must be identified separately from 
grant funds in the activity budget and must be broken out into activity and general 
administration funding, as applicable. The Department will not encumber locally 
administered Program Income against NOFA grant funds in the state’s accounting 
system. Only new grant awards made under a NOFA or in conjunction with an 
Urgent Need application will be encumbered in the state’s accounting system.  
 
Funding in this Agreement may include, as applicable, either or both:  
 
1)  The total new grant award from the NOFA to be encumbered by the 

Department from grand funds; and/or  
 
2)  The total locally held Program Income acquired as a result of grant-funded 

activities by the Subrecipient that will not be encumbered by the 
Department.  

 
This Agreement is for the sum total of funds to be used in the activity including 
grant funds and Program Income, as applicable. Program Income receipts, if 
applicable, must be reported no less frequently than quarterly.   

 
C. Other Non-State CDBG-DR Funding Sources: The Subrecipient shall report on the 

value of other contributions included as leverage for each activity via the Funds 
Request (Financial Report) required for such activity. In Grants Network, funds 
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request is called a financial report. The Financial Reports shall be accessed 
through Grants Network portal, the online grant management system. Disaster 
Recovery Grant Reporting System (DRGR), Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) System.    

 
2. Availability of Funds 

 
The Department’s provision of funding to Subrecipient pursuant to this Agreement is 
contingent on the continued availability of CDBG-DR funds and continued federal 
authorization for CDBG-DR activities, as well as the conditions set forth in Exhibit D, 
Section 34. The Department’s provision of funding is subject to amendment or 
termination due to lack of funds or authorization. This Agreement is subject to written 
modification or termination as necessary by the Department in accordance with 
requirements contained in any future state or federal legislation and/or state or federal 
regulations. All other modifications must be in written form and approved by both parties. 

3. Eligible Costs 
 

A. No activity costs may be incurred, or funds reimbursed, until the Subrecipient has 
documented compliance with all applicable National Environmental Protection Act 
(NEPA) requirements established in 24 CFR 50, 24 CFR 58, and 42 USC 4321, et 
seq.  

 
Activity Delivery costs may be incurred prior to documented NEPA and CEQA 
compliance. See Section 4(A)(3) below for reimbursement requirements of Activity 
Delivery costs. 
 

B. Allowable Costs: Allowable costs shall mean those necessary and proper costs 
under 2 CFR 200.400 through 475, and as identified in the Subrecipient’s 
application and as detailed in Exhibit E, Section VI, and as approved by the 
Department unless any or all such costs are disallowed by the State of California or 
HUD. Allowable costs include necessary and proper activity and administration 
costs incurred prior to the execution of this Agreement. All costs incurred prior to 
the execution of this Agreement must be eligible to be considered allowable and 
suitable for reimbursement. Eligible costs must, at a minimum, be costs incurred 
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according to the procurement requirements of 2 CFR 200.317, et seq. and be 
costs required for the activity in this Agreement to meet a National Objective.  

 
C. Priority of Funds: The Subrecipient agrees to utilize funds available under this 

Agreement to supplement rather than supplant funds otherwise available. To the 
extent available, the Subrecipient must disburse funds from locally held funding 
intended for the same purposes prior to using CDBG-DR grant resources such as, 
but not limited to, Program Income, rebates, refunds, contract settlements, audit 
recoveries, and interest earned on such funds before requesting additional cash 
payments from the grant award. 

 
D. Duplication of Benefits: Subrecipients may not use CDBG-DR funds for activities 

or expenditures that have been previously reimbursed or provided for by another 
federal, state or local agency or any other potential sources of assistance. If a 
duplication of funding occurs, the Subrecipient must return the CDBG-DR funds 
expended that resulted in the duplication. 

 
E. Withholding Funds: The Department reserves the right to withhold payments 

pending timely delivery of program reports or documents as may be required under 
this Agreement.  Payments are contingent upon the Subrecipient's financial 
management system meeting the requirements of 2 CFR 200.302, and the internal 
control requirements of 2 CFR 200.303. Payment may be suspended or 
terminated, in whole or in part, by the Department in its sole discretion in the event 
of a default by Subrecipient, including without limitation, the failure of Subrecipient 
to meet any Performance Milestone deadlines set forth herein. 

 
F. Disencumbering Funds: The Subrecipient agrees that funds determined by the 

Department to be surplus upon completion of the activity, or that have not been 
spent by Subrecipient prior to the expenditure deadline will be subject to 
disencumbrance by the Department.  

 
G. Indirect Costs: If Subrecipient wishes to charge for indirect costs, the Subrecipient 

must develop an indirect cost allocation plan for determining the appropriate 
CDBG-DR share of such indirect costs and submit such plan to the Department for 
approval prior to submission of requests for any payments for the indirect cost 
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expenditures. 
 

H. Pre-Agreement Costs: Pre-Agreement Costs are eligible costs incurred prior to the 
award of funds as defined in Exhibit D, Section 1. Eligible Pre-Agreement costs as 
identified in Exhibit E, Section VI, Project Budget, may only be reimbursed upon 
the full execution of this Agreement and verification that the costs meet all eligibility 
criteria. 

 
The Subrecipient agrees that any Pre-Agreement costs not previously identified in 
Exhibit E, Section VI, Project Budget, will not be paid by the Department.  

I. Administration Funds: Costs related to the management, oversight and 
administration of a grant-funded project are considered administrative costs under 
CDBG-DR. Inclusion of eligible administration costs for the Subrecipient will be at 
the sole discretion of the Department. The Subrecipient may request 
reimbursement of administration costs incurred from the administration of any 
project under this agreement only if included in the activity budget. 
 

4. Method of Payment 
 

The Department will not authorize payments unless it has determined the costs incurred 
are in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Financial Report through must be for 
a minimum of $1,000.00, with the exception of the final funds request, which must be 
marked “Final”. Payments will be issued to the agency identified on the Taxpayer 
Identification Form (TIN) provided by the Subrecipient to the Department.  

 
A. Reimbursements: The Department will reimburse the Subrecipient its allowable 

costs for the services identified in this Agreement in Exhibit E, Section VI, upon 
presentation of invoices which Subrecipient certified are true and correct copies of 
payments due on behalf of the Subrecipient for the activity covered by this 
Agreement and made in accordance and compliance with Exhibit A, Scope of 
Work. The Subrecipient may not request reimbursements under this Agreement 
until the funds are needed for payment of eligible costs. The amount of each 
request must be limited to the amount needed. 
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1) To receive reimbursement for grant activities, including reimbursement for 
eligible Pre-Agreement costs, the Subrecipient must submit a 
“Reimbursement Request,” which shall include all Department required 
forms as according to the applicable deadlines. Financial Reports and 
Activity Reports are to be submitted once per month. 
 
Activity Reports capture milestones and the progress of the reporting 
period. Financial Reports shall include the level of documentation specified 
by the Department, including proof of expenditure, and proof of cost 
eligibility. Subrecipients must submit documentation supporting cost 
amounts and cost eligibility with each funds request as part of the Financial 
Report. 

 
2) Subrecipients shall submit funds requests (Financial Reports), as defined in 

1(C), according to the schedule selected above. If no funds have been 
expended, the Subrecipient shall provide a description of work completed 
and an explanation of why no funds have been expended. 

 
3) Financial Reports shall be paid only after such costs are incurred for Work 

completed, provided the Department determines that the Project 
Milestones (see Exhibit E) in this Agreement are on track. Subrecipient may 
expend up to the indicated Activity Delivery amount as identified in Exhibit 
E. 

 
B. Advances: The Subrecipient must receive prior written approval from the 

Department before submitting an advance request. All advances are subject to the 
Department’s consent, which may be given or withheld on its sole discretion. No 
advances will be issued prior to full Agreement execution. 

 
C. Final Payment Requests: 

 
1) Funds Requests (Financial Report): All requests for final reimbursement 

must be submitted through Grants Network before the Expenditure 
Deadline referenced in Exhibit A, Section 4 of this Agreement.  
 



  
 Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa 

22-OORHC-00002 
 Page 6 of 8 
 
 EXHIBIT B 

 
Program Name: ReCoverCA Housing Counseling Program 
NOFA Date: 9/01/2021 
Approved Date: 6/22/2022 
Prep. Date: 7/15/2022 
 

2) Reimbursement of Advance Payment: The last advance payment must be 
submitted to the Department through Grants Network no later than sixty 
(60) days prior to the Expenditure Deadline of this Agreement. 

 
3) Return of Unexpended Funds: All funds received in advance by the 

Subrecipient but not expended by the Expenditure Deadline must be 
accounted for and returned to the Department within thirty (30) days after 
the Expenditure Deadline.  Funds shall be returned in accordance with the 
current State CDBG-DR Grants Management Manual. All returned funds 
will be disencumbered and unavailable to Subrecipient. 
 

4) All Funds Not Previously Requested:  If the final funds disbursement 
request for costs expended during the term of this Agreement has not been 
received by the Department before the Expenditure Deadline, and the 
Subrecipient has not requested an extension per Exhibit A Section 4, (Term 
of Agreement and Performance Milestones), the Department may 
disencumber any funds remaining and such grant funds will no longer be 
available for the Subrecipient. 

 
5) Recapture of Improper Payments: If any review of funds disbursement 

determines that payment was made for ineligible expenses, pursuant to this 
Agreement, the amount of CDBG-DR funds provided to reimburse the 
expenses must be recaptured by the Department. The reasons for a 
recapture of funds by the Department include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

 
• The Subrecipient does not comply with the terms of this Agreement 

or any agreement executed by the Subrecipient and the Department 
in connection here with; 

 
• The Subrecipient withdraws from the Program prior to completion of 

the Approved Project(s); and/or 
 
• The Subrecipient fails to meet a National Objective as defined under 

24 CFR § 570.208 
 
The Subrecipient must return the amount determined ineligible by the 
Department no less than thirty (30) days from the written notification. The 
potential recapture of funds pursuant to this provision is in addition to, and 
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not in lieu of, any other rights and remedies of the Department under this 
Agreement (see also Exhibit D, Section 4). 

 
5. Budget Revisions and Amendments 
 

Budget line item adjustments may be made in accordance with the following: 
 

A. Budget Revisions: Adjustments to the Budget that do not require an increase or 
reduction of total activity budget, a change in National Objective, or a change in the 
type or a reduction in number of beneficiaries assisted may be completed as a 
Budget Revision. Budget Revisions shall include but not be limited to: 
 
1) Adjustments that reallocate funds between budget line items, including 

between  Administration funding, activity funding, and Program Income 
resources, including both Program Income cash on hand, and Program 
Income projected receipts, but that otherwise does not change the overall 
budget total, the scope of work, the National Objective, and type and count 
of estimated beneficiaries. Reallocations involving Administration funding 
are subject to applicable Administration caps identified in the Notice of 
Funding Availability. 
 

2) Adjustments that increase or decrease the detail included in the submitted 
lined item budgets, including adding and removing budget line items, 
without increasing or decreasing the scope of work and without changing 
the overall budget.   

 
Budget Revisions must be approved by the Department in its sole discretion prior 
to implementation. Submission and approval for budget revision shall be executed 
either through HCD’s Grants Network system, or in writing, as appropriate. If 
approved, Budget Revisions shall automatically be deemed a part of, and 
incorporated into, this Agreement. 
 

B. Budget Amendments: Adjustments to the Budget that result in an increased or a 
reduced total activity budget shall require a Contract Amendment. Contract 
Amendments must be fully executed by both the Subrecipient and the Department 
prior to implementation.  Adjustments may not be implemented prior to execution 
unless the Department has provided written notice authorizing the Subrecipient to 
proceed.   
 

6. Grant Closing Requirements 
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A. Expenditure Deadline: 

 
1) All Program funds shall be expended no later than the Expenditure 

Deadline as defined in Exhibit A, Section 4. All requests for funds must be 
submitted no later than 30 days prior to the Expenditure Deadline.   

 
2) The Final Financial Report for the activity must be marked final and 

submitted before the Expenditure Deadline. Financial Reports submitted 
after the Expenditure Deadline will not be eligible for reimbursement. 

 
Closeout Procedure: The Subrecipient must submit the following at the completion 
of the activity:  
 
1) A Final Activity Report that includes all required reporting data for the 

activity; 
 

2) A filed Notice of Completion (if applicable); 
 

3) Evidence, satisfactory to the Department, of compliance with any and all 
other Special Conditions of this Agreement as set forth in Exhibit E hereto; 
and, 

 
4) A resolution from the governing body acknowledging the accomplishments 

of the activity and confirming that the activity is complete and that all 
outstanding funds have been reimbursed by the Department. 

 
If the Subrecipient identified an extended reporting period will be required to meet 
the National Objective for the activity in the Application, the above closeout 
requirements shall be submitted upon the completion of the activity, or within 
twenty-four (24) months after the Expiration Deadline, whichever comes first. If no 
extended reporting period is required, the above closeout requirements shall be 
submitted within thirty (30) days after the Agreement's Expenditure Deadline. 
Upon receipt of the above documentation, the Department will close out this 
Agreement and finalize the activity in DRGR for final reporting to HUD. 
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CDBG-DR PROGRAM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Definitions 

 
A. "Activity" means one of the following HUD eligible activities as per 42 U.S.C. 

5305, 24 CFR 570.482, or as identified within the applicable waivers and 
alternative requirements provided in the applicable Federal Register Notice. 
 
1) Acquisition (§ 5305 (a)(1)) 

 
2) Public Improvements (§ 5305 (a)(2)) 

 
3) Public Facilities (§ 5305 (a)(2) and (5)) 

 
4) Code Enforcement (§ 5305 (a)(3)) 

 
5) Housing Rehabilitation (§ 5305 (a)(4)) 

 
6) Public Services (§ 5305 (a)(8)) 

 
7) Planning and Technical Assistance (Section 105(a)(12), (14) and (19) 

 
8) Business Financial Assistance (§ 5305 (a)(17)) 

 
9) Microenterprise Assistance (§ 5305 (a)(22)) 

 
10) Homeownership (§ 5305 (a)(24)) 

 
B. “Activity Budget” means the budget included in Exhibit E, Section VI, Project 

Budget, as referenced by Exhibit B, Budget Detail, and Payment Provisions. 
 

C. "Activity Delivery" (AD) means any reasonable and necessary costs that are not 
directly related to labor and/or direct construction and/or direct activity 
implementation costs. The Subrecipient may expend up to the indicated AD as 
identified the NOFA that is associated with this Agreement or any relevant CDBG 
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or CDBG-DR Management Memo. CDBG-DR funds for AD cannot be drawn 
down unless CDBG-DR activity costs have previously been drawn down or are 
being drawn down on the same funds request.  

 
 
D. “Activity Reports” are the activity reports that must be submitted at least quarterly 

that describe program or project progress and/or beneficiaries served during a 
given reporting period.  
 

E. “Area Median Income (AMI)” means the median family income for specific 
geographic areas, adjusted for household size, as calculated by HUD, and 
published annually by the Department at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-
funding/income-limits/state-andfederal-income-limits.shtml. 

 
F. “California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)” is a state statute that requires 

state and local agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of their 
actions and to avoid or mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 
 

G. “Contractor” is a properly licensed person or company who is procured 
competitively that Subrecipients hire to undertake a contract to provide materials 
or labor to perform a service or do a job for a project. 

 
H. “Department” means the California Department of Housing and Community 

Development.  
 
I. “Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting System (DRGR)” is the electronic system 

primarily used by the Department to access Grant Funds from HUD and report 
performance accomplishments for grant-funded activities to HUD. The DRGR 
system is used by HUD to review grant-funded activities, prepare reports to 
Congress and other interested parties, and monitor program compliance.  

 
J. “Duplication of Benefits (DOB)” occurs when financial assistance received from 

another source is provided for the same purpose as the CDBG-DR funds, in 
accordance with Federal Register Notices 84 FR 28836 and 84 FR 28848. 
 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/income-limits/state-andfederal-income-limits.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/income-limits/state-andfederal-income-limits.shtml
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K. "Funds Request" is also identified as a Financial Report and refers to the forms 
and processes required to request the drawdown of CDBG-DR funds (requests 
for funds must be a minimum of $1,000.00 unless it is the final Financial Report 
for an activity). Funds disbursements must be completed no less than quarterly 
for each open activity, including Program Income funded activities. 
 

L. "General Administration" refers to eligible administrative expenses as provided in 
42 U.S.C. 5305(a)(13). 

 
M.  “Low- to Moderate- Income (LMI)” refers to individuals or households having 

incomes not more than the “moderate-income” level (80% Area Median Family 
Income) set by the federal government for the HUD-assisted programs. This 
income standard changes from year to year and varies by Household size, 
county and the metropolitan statistical area. 
 

N. “National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA)” is the federal law and associated 
regulations which establishes a broad national framework for protecting the 
environment. NEPA's basic policy is to assure that all branches of government 
consider the environment prior to undertaking any major federal action that could 
significantly affect the environment. 
 

O.  “Pre-Agreement Costs” are pre-award costs as defined at 2 CFR 200.458 and 
24 CFR 570.489(p) and are costs that are eligible per 2 CFR 200.400 et.seq. that 
have been itemized on the approved activity budget as identified in Exhibit E, 
Section VI, Project Budget, as referenced by Exhibit B, Budget Detail and 
Payment Provisions. 
 

P. "Program" means an eligible activity that provides direct assistance to eligible 
participants within a defined service area. Programs include public services, 
housing assistance to households, and instances where an eligible person, 
household, or area is directly assisted with a unit of service. 
 

Q. “Program Guidelines” means the CDBG-DR Program Guidelines as adopted or 
amended that detail the operation of the State CDBG-DR program, as per Health 
and Safety Code 50826.1(a) that states that the regulations are repealed upon 
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adoption of guidelines.  
 

R. “Program Income”, as defined in 24 CFR 570.489(e), means gross income 
received by the Subrecipient that is directly generated from the use of CDBG-DR 
funds.  When such income is generated by an activity that is only partially 
assisted with CDBG-DR funds, the income shall be prorated to reflect the 
percentage of CDBG-DR funds used.   
 

S. "Project" means eligible public service program, planning effort, housing 
rehabilitation, or capital improvements to public facilities, infrastructure, assets, 
and right-of-way. Projects may also include eligible capital improvements to 
privately owned facilities, infrastructure, and assets that serve the public or that 
provide a public good, including shelters, community-based facilities, and utilities. 
A project may be made up of more than one eligible activity. 
 

T. “Subrecipient” means the jurisdiction that applied for CDBG-DR funding and has 
legal authority to sign this Agreement and commit to compliance with all federal 
requirements regarding the administration of federal funds, as identified in 2 CFR 
200. 
 

2. Eligible Activities 
 
Subrecipient will only use funds under this Agreement for the activities identified in 
Exhibit E.  All activities must be eligible CDBG activities as authorized under 42 U.S.C. 
5305 and 24 CFR 570.482. 
 

3. National Objectives 
 
Subrecipient will only use funds in support of the National Objective identified in Exhibit 
E, Section IV. All CDBG-DR funded grant activities must meet a National Objective as 
defined in 42 U.S.C. 5304(b)(3), as amended, and 24 CFR Part 570.208.  
 
Real property acquired in whole or in part with CDBG-DR funds must be used to meet 
the same National Objective for which it was purchased for no less than five years after 
project closeout.  The Department may require a Use Restriction Agreement be 
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recorded against real property acquired or improved in whole or in part with CDBG-DR 
funds. 
 
 

4. Termination and Remedies for Noncompliance 
 
Awards as secured by this Agreement may be terminated by the Department in whole 
or in part as per federal regulation at 2 CFR 200.339. All terminations shall include 
written notification setting forth the reason(s) for such termination, the effective date, 
and the portion to be terminated in the case of partial terminations and will follow 
termination notification requirements identified in 2 CFR 200.340.  
 
A. Termination without Cause: Agreements may be terminated without cause in 

whole or in part by the Department only with the consent of the Subrecipient. In 
the case of a whole agreement termination, the two parties shall agree upon 
termination conditions, including the effective date. In the case of partial 
termination, the two parties shall agree upon termination conditions, including the 
portion to be terminated and the effective date. 
 

B. Noncompliance and Termination with Cause: The Department may terminate this 
Agreement for Subrecipient’s failure to comply with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. Terminations for material failure to comply with the Agreement 
terms and conditions must be reported by the Department to the appropriate 
federal program integrity and performance system accessible through the 
System for Award Management (SAM) as per 2 CFR 200.339(b).    
 
1) The Department may initiate remedies for noncompliance as identified in 2 

CFR 200.338 at any time it has been determined that the Subrecipient is 
no longer meeting the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Remedies 
for noncompliance may be required in addition to, in lieu of, or prior to 
termination. 
 

2) Prior to terminating this Agreement for cause or noncompliance, the 
Department shall submit written notice specifying noncompliance and/or 
specifying the event or events that if not cured would constitute an event 
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of default. The Department’s written notice shall identify remedies for cure. 
Subrecipient shall have thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of notice to 
fully cure. This period may be extended at the Department’s discretion for 
a reasonable period of time if the Subrecipient is acting in good faith to 
cure the noncompliance or cause.  Any extension of the cure period must 
be communicated in writing by the Department.   
 

3) The Department’s remedies for Subrecipient’s noncompliance with a 
federal statute or regulation, a state statute or regulation, an assurance, in 
a State plan or application, a notice of award, or elsewhere may include, 
as appropriate: 
 
• Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the 

deficiency by the Subrecipient.  
 

• Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and matching credit for) all 
or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance. 
 

• Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the current award for the 
Subrecipient’s program or project, as applicable. 
 

• Withhold further and/or future awards of CDBG-DR funds. 
 

• Request that HUD initiate federal suspension debarment 
proceedings.  
 

• Take other remedies that may be legally available, including, but 
not limited to: 
 

(a) In the case of costs incurred without meeting a National Objective, 
require repayment of all funds reimbursed, including General 
Administration, Activity Delivery, and any and all Program Income, 
as appropriate. 
 

4) In taking an action to remedy noncompliance, the Department will provide 
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the Subrecipient an opportunity for such hearing, appeal, or other 
administrative proceeding to which the Subrecipient is entitled under any 
statute or regulation applicable to the action involved as per 2 CFR 
200.341 and/or the Department’s Monitoring Plan and associated exhibits. 
 

C. Effects of Suspension and Termination:  Subrecipient costs resulting from 
obligations incurred by the Subrecipient or any of the Subrecipient’s contractors 
during a suspension or after termination of an Agreement are not allowable 
unless otherwise authorized by the Department in written notice or as allowable 
in 2 CFR 200.342. Termination and remedies for noncompliance identified in this 
Section do not preclude a Subrecipient or any of the Subrecipient’s contractors 
from being subject to non-procurement debarment and suspension requirements 
at 2 CFR 2424. CDBG-DR funds may not be provided to excluded or disqualified 
persons pursuant to 24 CFR 570.489(l). 
 

D. Remedies: All remedies of the Department hereunder are cumulative and not 
exclusive. 
 

5. Severability 
 
A. If any provision of this Agreement, or an underlying obligation, is held invalid by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, at the sole discretion of the 
Department, shall not affect any other provisions of this Agreement and the 
remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  Therefore, the 
provisions of this Agreement are, and shall be, deemed severable. 

 
B. The Subrecipient shall notify the Department immediately of any claim or action 

undertaken by or against it which affects or may affect this Agreement or the 
Department, and shall take such action with respect to the claim or action as is 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and the interests of the Department. 

 
6. Waivers 
 

No waiver or any breach of this Agreement shall be held to be a waiver of any prior or 
subsequent breach.  All waivers must be in writing signed by the waiving party in order 
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to be effective.  The failure of the Department to enforce, at any time, the provisions of 
this Agreement or to require, at any time, performance by the Subrecipient of these 
provisions shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions nor to affect 
the validity of this Agreement or the right of the Department to enforce these provisions. 
 
 

7. Uniform Administrative Requirements 
 

The Subrecipient, its agencies or instrumentalities, and contractors shall comply with 
the policies, guidelines and Administrative Requirements of 2 CFR Part 200 et seq., as 
applicable, as they relate to the cost principles, audit requirements, acceptance and use 
of federal funds.   
 
A. Single Audit Compliance: Funds will not be disbursed to any Subrecipient 

identified by the State Controller's Office (SCO) as non-compliant with the 
Federal Single Audit Act, as described in the Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, And Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 
CFR 200 Sub-Part F. No funds may be disbursed until compliance with the 
Uniform Administrative Requirements is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the 
Department. 

 
B. Accounting Standards: Subrecipient agrees to comply with, and administer the 

activity in conformance with, 2 CFR Part 200.300 et seq, and agrees to adhere to 
the accounting principles and procedures required therein, utilize adequate 
internal controls, and maintain necessary source documentation for all costs 
incurred.  

 
C. Suspension and Debarment: By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient verifies 

and affirms that it has not been suspended or debarred from participating in or 
receiving federal government contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants or other 
assistance programs. 

 
8. Compliance with State and Federal Laws and Regulations 
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A. Subrecipient, its agencies or instrumentalities, and contractors shall comply with 
all local, state, and federal laws, statutes, and regulations, as well as policies and 
guidelines established by the Department for the administration of the CDBG-DR 
program.   

 
B. Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of 24 CFR 570.480 et seq., the 

Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regulations concerning State 
administered Community Development Block Grants, 2 CFR 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, Final Guidance, as adopted by HUD at 2 CFR 2400, Title II of 
the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act (42 U.S.C. § 12701 et 
seq.) and all federal regulations and policies issued pursuant to these 
regulations. The Subrecipient further agrees to utilize funds available under this 
Agreement to supplement rather than supplant funds otherwise available. 

 
9. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 
 

Subrecipient shall affirmatively further fair housing, in accordance with the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C 2000a, et seq.), and the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601, et 
seq.), according to 42 U.S.C. 5306, et seq. and in compliance with California statute 
(Gov. Code sections 65583, et seq.), as the same may be amended from time to time. 
Subrecipient shall comply with the Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988 (Public Law 
100-430), as the same may be amended from time to time.  
 

10. Equal Opportunity Requirements and Responsibilities 
 

Subrecipient agrees that it undertakes hereby the same obligations to the Department 
that the Department has undertaken to HUD pursuant to the Department’s CDBG-DR 
certifications. The obligations undertaken by Subrecipient include, but are not limited to, 
the obligation to comply with all applicable federal laws and regulations described in 
Subpart K of 24 CFR Part 570 and specifically with each of the following: 
 
A. The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (Public Law 93-383) that 

authorized the CDBG program, as amended, and legislative changes contained 
in the Housing and Urban-Rural Recovery Act of 1983 that authorized the state 
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administered CDBG program for non-entitlement communities, and the 
Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 4151) that requires publicly 
funded facilities be accessible to the public;  

 
B. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352) prohibiting 

discrimination based on protected class, as amended, Title VIII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1968 (Public Law 90-284) prohibiting discrimination in housing, as 
amended; the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (Public Law 100-259) 
requiring expanded compliance with civil rights laws for jurisdictions receiving 
federal funding; Section 104(d) regarding relocation and displacement and 
Section 109 of Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
prohibiting discrimination in CDBG-DR funded programs, as amended; Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 prohibiting recipients of federal funds from 
discrimination against persons with disability; the Americans With Disabilities Act 
of 1990 prohibiting all public discrimination against persons with disabilities; the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 prohibiting age-based discrimination in federally 
funded activities; Executive Order 11063 prohibiting discrimination in disposition 
of properties owned or financed with federal funds, as amended by Executive 
Order 12259; and Executive Order 11246 regarding fair employment, as 
amended by Executive Orders 11375, 11478 and 12086; and HUD regulations 
heretofore issued or to be issued to implement these authorities relating to civil 
rights;  

 
C. The Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972 that created the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission, Equal Employment Opportunity and 
Affirmative Action requirement (EEO/AA); Subrecipient shall, in all solicitations or 
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, state 
that it is an Equal Opportunity or Affirmative Action employer.  

 
11. Procurement 

 
The Subrecipient shall comply with the procurement provisions in 2 CFR Part 200.317 – 
200.326, Procurement Standards, as well as all other Administrative Requirements for 
Grants and Cooperative Agreements to state, local and federally recognized Indian 
tribal governments as set forth in 2 CFR 200, et al, as applicable. All procurements must 
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be conducted in a fair, open, and competitive manner in compliance with both the spirit 
and the letter of applicable federal and state procurement laws. 
 

 
12. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
 

Subrecipient shall comply with and require the following in contracts and subrecipient 
agreements: If a Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 
CFR 401.2(a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a 
small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, 
assignment or performance of recipient or subrecipient must comply with requirements 
of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small 
Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,“ 
and any implementing regulation issued by the awarding agency. 
 

13. Prohibition Against Payments of Bonus or Commission 
 

The assistance provided under this Agreement shall not be used in the payment of any 
bonus or commission for the purpose of: 
 
A. Obtaining the Department's approval of the Application for such assistance or 

additional assistance; or, 
 

B. Securing any other approval or concurrence of the Department required under 
this Agreement, Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, 
or the State regulations or Program Guidelines with respect thereto; provided, 
however, that reasonable fees for bona fide technical, consultant, managerial or 
other such services, other than actual solicitation, are not hereby prohibited if 
otherwise eligible as program costs. 
 

14. Reporting Requirements 
 

A. Requirements: During the term of this Agreement, the Subrecipient must submit 
all CDBG-DR program reports required by the Department, including quarterly 
activity, financial, and Program Income reports, semi-annual labor and 
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compliance reports, annual performance reports, and other reports required by 
the Department or HUD. The Department reserves the right to request additional 
detail and support for any report made. Reports must be made according to the 
dates identified, unless otherwise specified at the discretion of the Department.  
The Subrecipient's performance under this Agreement will be evaluated in part 
on whether it has submitted the reports on a timely basis.  

 
B. Reporting Period: Subrecipient shall submit reports quarterly, and as required for 

semi-annual and annual reports, and shall continue to submit reports until such 
time that the activity is complete, a National Objective has been met and 
beneficiaries have been identified.  The reporting period for this activity may 
extend beyond the Expenditure Deadline as defined in Exhibit A.  

 
C. Final Reporting Deadline: Subrecipient shall complete all required reporting for 

this activity no later than five (5) years from the execution date of this Agreement 
as identified on the STD 213. 

 
D. Asset Reporting: Subrecipient shall report annually on the status of all assets 

(real and personal property, equipment, and vehicles) purchased in whole or in 
part with CDBG-DR funds for no less than five years from the completion of the 
activity that generated the asset.  Reporting shall continue until the property is 
disposed, fully depreciated, or, in the event of real property, the five-year 
commitment to a National Objective has been completed. 

 
15. Fiscal Controls 
 

Subrecipient shall be responsible for the internal control and monitoring of fiscal and 
programmatic/operational goals and procedures. The Subrecipient shall establish and 
maintain such fiscal controls and fund accounting procedures as required by federal 
regulations, or as may be deemed necessary by the Department to ensure the proper 
disbursal of, and accounting for, funds paid to the Subrecipient under this Agreement.  
 
A. Deposit of Funds: Subrecipient shall maintain separate accounts within 

established bookkeeping systems for the deposit of CDBG-DR funds. All cash 
advances must be deposited in an interest-bearing account; any interest earned 
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in excess of $100.00 per year (which may be retained for related administrative 
expenses) must be returned at least quarterly to HUD via the Department. 
Deposits in minority banks are encouraged.  

 
B. Fund Management: Subrecipient shall deposit funds in an account requiring two 

signatures for disbursement and shall submit to the Department specimen 
signatures for all authorized signatories prior to receipt of funds;  

 
C. Fiscal Liability: Subrecipient shall be liable for all amounts which are determined 

to be due by the Department including, but not limited to, disallowed costs which 
are the result of Subrecipient’s or its contractor’s conduct under this Agreement. 
Subrecipient shall be notified in writing and shall be permitted to respond 
regarding any controversy or proceeding between the Department and HUD 
arising from this Agreement. 

 
D. Fiscal Records: All financial transactions must be supported by complete and 

verifiable source documents. Records shall provide a clear audit trail and shall be 
maintained as specified in Section 25 of this Agreement. 

 
E. Program Income: Any and all Program Income received by Subrecipient during 

the administration of this Agreement must be receipted and deposited into a 
separate Program Income account. Program Income funds may not be 
comingled with CDBG-DR grant funds in a single account. Program Income 
funds must be reported monthly to show source, amounts, expenditures, and 
remaining balance. Program income remaining at the end of each quarter is 
remitted to the state. 

 
16. Reversion of Assets 
 

Upon expiration of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to the Department any 
CDBG-DR funds, excluding Program Income, in Subrecipient’s control at the time of 
expiration. Further, any real property under Subrecipient’s control that was acquired 
and/or improved in whole or in part with CDBG-DR funds (including CDBG-DR funds 
provided to the Subrecipient in the form of a loan and Program Income) in excess of 
$25,000.00 shall be either:  
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A. Used to meet one of the National Objectives in 24 CFR Part 570 until five (5) 

years after expiration or closure of this Agreement, the length of time to be 
further prescribed by mutual agreement of the parties. 

 
B. Disposed of in such manner that Subrecipient is reimbursed in the amount of the 

fair market value of the property at the time of disposition of the property less any 
portion of the value attributable to expenditures of non-CDBG funds for 
acquisition and/or improvement of such property. The proceeds from such 
disposition is Program Income.  
 

If the Subrecipient provides funds for the purchase or improvement of real property to a 
subrecipient that is a private non-profit organization, that subrecipient must further 
agree to a voluntary lien on above-referenced real property as to any CDBG funds 
received and that such lien will be notarized and recorded in the Office of the County 
Recorder where the real property is located. 
 

17. Monitoring Requirements 
 
The Department shall perform a program and/or fiscal monitoring of the CDBG-DR 
grant no less than once during the period of this Agreement.  The Subrecipient shall be 
required to resolve any monitoring findings to the Department's satisfaction by the 
deadlines set by the Department to maintain program eligibility.   
 
Subrecipients and applicable subrecipients shall retain all books, records, accounts, 
documentation, and all other materials relevant to this Agreement for a minimum period 
of five (5) years after the Department notifies the Subrecipient that the HCD contract 
has been closed according to the record retention requirements at 2 CFR 200.333. 
 
Subrecipients and applicable subrecipients shall permit the State, federal government, 
the state Bureau of State Audits, the Department, and/or their representatives, upon 
reasonable notice, unrestricted access to any or all books, records, accounts, 
documentation, and all other materials relevant to this Agreement for the purpose of 
monitoring, auditing, or otherwise examining said materials. 
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18. Inspections of Grant Activity 
 
The Department and HUD reserves the right to inspect any grant activity(ies) performed 
hereunder to verify that the grant activity(ies) is being and/or has been performed in 
accordance with the applicable federal, state and/or local requirements and this 
Agreement. 
 
A. The Subrecipient shall inspect any grant activity performed by contractors and 

subrecipients hereunder to ensure that the grant activity(ies) is being and has 
been performed in accordance with the applicable federal, state and/or local 
requirements and this Agreement. 
 

B. The Subrecipient agrees to require that all grant activity(ies) found by such 
inspections not to conform to the applicable requirements be corrected, and to 
withhold payment to its contractor or subcontractor, respectively, until it is so 
corrected. 

 
19. Signs 
 

If the Subrecipient places signs stating that the activity is funded with private or public 
dollars and the Department is also providing financing, it shall indicate in a typeface and 
size commensurate with the Department's funding portion of the project that the 
Department is a source of financing through the CDBG-DR Program. 
 

20. Insurance 
 

Subrecipient shall comply with all requirements outlined in the (A) General Provisions 
section and (B) Contract Insurance Requirements outlined in this section.  No payments 
will be made under this Agreement until the Subrecipient fully complies with all 
requirements. 
 

A. General Provisions Applying to All Policies 
 

1) Coverage Term – Coverage needs to be in force for the complete term of 
the Agreement.  If insurance expires during the term of the Agreement, a 
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new certificate must be received by the State at least thirty (30) days prior 
to the expiration of this insurance.  Any new insurance must comply with 
the original terms of the Agreement. 

 
2) Policy Cancellation or Termination & Notice of Non-Renewal – 

Subrecipient is responsible to notify the State within five (5) business days 
of any cancellation, non-renewal or material change that affects required 
insurance coverage.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of the Department of General Services and the Subrecipient 
agrees no work or services will be performed prior to obtaining such 
approval. In the event Subrecipient fails to keep in effect at all times the 
specified insurance coverage, the State may, in addition to any other 
remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of 
such event, subject to the provisions of this Agreement.  
 

3) Premiums, Assessments and Deductibles – Subrecipient is responsible for 
any premiums, policy assessments, deductibles or self-insured retentions 
contained within their insurance program. 
 

4) Primary Clause – Any required insurance contained in this Agreement 
shall be primary, and not excess or contributory, to any other insurance 
carried by the State. 
 

5) Insurance Carrier Required Rating – All insurance companies must carry 
an AM Best rating of at least “A–” with a financial category rating of no 
lower than VII.  If the Subrecipient is self-insured for a portion or all of its 
insurance, review of financial information including a letter of credit may 
be required. 
 

6) Endorsements – Any required endorsements requested by the State must 
be physically attached to all requested certificates of insurance and not 
substituted by referring to such coverage on the certificate of insurance. 
 

7) Inadequate Insurance – Inadequate or lack of insurance does not negate 
the contractor’s obligations under the Agreement. 
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8) Available Coverages/Limits – All coverage and limits available to the 

Subrecipient shall also be available and applicable to the State. 
 

9) Satisfying an SIR - All insurance required by this Agreement must allow 
the State to pay and/or act as the contractor’s agent in satisfying any self-
insured retention (SIR). The choice to pay and/or act as the contractor’s 
agent in satisfying any SIR is at the State’s discretion. 

 
10) Use of Contractors and Subcontractors - In the case of Subrecipient’s 

utilization of contractors and subcontractors to complete the contracted 
scope of work, the Subrecipient shall include any prime contractor as 
insured’s under Subrecipient’s insurance or supply evidence of the 
contractor’s insurance to The State equal to policies, coverages, and limits 
required of the Subrecipient. 

 
B. Contract Insurance Requirements  

 
Subrecipient shall provide evidence of the following on a certificate of insurance 
evidencing the following coverages: 
 

1) Commercial General Liability – Subrecipient shall maintain general 
liability on an occurrence form with limits not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability combined with a 
$2,000,000 annual policy aggregate.  The policy shall include coverage for 
liabilities arising out of premises, operations, independent contractors, 
products, completed operations, personal & advertising injury, and liability 
assumed under an insured contract.  This insurance shall apply separately 
to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought subject to 
the Subrecipient’s limit of liability.  
 
The policy must name The State of California, its officers, agents, and 
employees as additional insured, but only with respect to work performed 
under the Agreement.  
 



  
 Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa 

22-OORHC-00002 
 Page 18 of 22 
 
 EXHIBIT D 

 
Program Name: ReCoverCA Housing Counseling Program 
NOFA Date: 9/01/2021 
Approved Date: 6/22/2022 
Prep. Date: 9/15/2022 

2) Automobile Liability – Subrecipient shall maintain business automobile 
liability insurance for limits not less than $1,000,000 combined single 
limit.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of a motor vehicle 
including owned, hired and non-owned motor vehicles.  Should the scope 
of the Agreement involve transportation of hazardous materials, evidence 
of an MCS-90 endorsement is required.  
 
The policy must name The State of California, its officers, agents, and 
employees as additional insured, but only with respect to work performed 
under the Agreement.  
 

3) Workers Compensation and Employers Liability – Subrecipient shall 
maintain statutory worker’s compensation and employer’s liability 
coverage for all its employees who will be engaged in the performance of 
the Agreement.  In addition, employer’s liability limits of $1,000,000 are 
required. By signing this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges 
compliance with these regulations.  A Waiver of Subrogation or Right to 
Recover endorsement in favor of the State of California must be attached 
to certificate. 
 

21. Force Majeure 
 
A Force Majeure is an unforeseeable event outside of a Subrecipient’s reasonable 
control which prevents or delays performance of that Subrecipient’s obligations under 
this Agreement. Such event does not include the normal risks a Subrecipient assumes 
when it enters a contract. A Force Majeure event is a natural disaster such as an 
earthquake, flood, hurricane, pandemic, an Act of God, act of war, act of public enemies 
of this state or of the United States, or other similar event. 
 
Force Majeure also includes actions or measures taken by any governmental authority, 
including executive orders, public health orders, other governmental orders, laws, 
regulations, or other government actions taken in response to a “Force Majeure” event, 
such as a quarantine or other restriction which prevents or delays the performance of a 
Subrecipient’s obligations under this Agreement.   
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If a Subrecipient chooses to assert “Force Majeure”, it must give notice to the 
Department under this Agreement within ten (10) days of the occurrence of the Force 
Majeure event. Notice is to be given in accordance with the notice provisions of this 
Agreement, and must include a description of the Force Majeure event, how said event 
has prevented or delayed the Subrecipient’s ability to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement, a description of reasonable measures the Subrecipient proposes to take to 
resume performance of its obligations under this Agreement, and a date by which the 
Subrecipient anticipates it will resume performance of its obligations. Any changes or 
extensions to the term of the agreement due to a “Force Majeure” notice will require the 
Department’s approval as described in Exhibit A, Section 3.  
 

22. Anti-Lobbying Certification 
 
Subrecipient shall comply with and require that the language of this certification be 
included in all contracts or subcontracts entered into in connection with this grant 
activity(ies) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.  This 
certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 
this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of 
not less than $10,000.00 and no more than $100,000.00 for such failure. 
 
A. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 

it, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any 
federal contract, the cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

 
B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form 
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LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 
 
23. Conflict of Interest  

 
Pursuant to 24 CFR 570.489(h) and 2 CFR Part 200.112, no member, officer, or 
employee of the Subrecipient, or its designees or agents, no member of the governing 
body of the locality in which the program is situated, and no other public official of such 
locality or localities who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with 
respect to CDBG activities assisted under this part, or who are in a position to 
participate in a decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such 
activities, including members and delegates to the Congress of the Unites States may 
obtain a financial interest or benefit from a CDBG assisted activity, or have a financial 
interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect to a CDBG assisted 
activity or its proceeds, either for themselves or those with whom they have business or 
immediate family ties, during their tenure, or for one (1) year thereafter.  The 
Subrecipient shall incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all such contracts or 
subcontracts a provision prohibiting such interest pursuant to the purposes of this 
section. 
 

24. Obligations of Subrecipient with Respect to Certain Third-Party Relationships 
 
Subrecipient shall remain fully obligated under the provisions of this Agreement 
notwithstanding its designation of any third party or parties for the undertaking of all or 
any part of the Program with respect to which assistance is being provided under this 
Agreement to the Subrecipient. The Subrecipient shall comply with all lawful 
requirements of the Department necessary to ensure that the Program, with respect to 
which assistance is being provided under this Agreement to the Subrecipient, is carried 
out in accordance with the Department's Assurance and Certifications, including those 
with respect to the assumption of environmental responsibilities of the Department 
under Section 104(g) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 [42 
U.S.C. 5304(g)]. 
 

25. Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
 
This Agreement is subject to mandatory standards and policies relating to energy 
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efficiency which are contained in the State Energy Conservation Plan issued in 
compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871). 
 

26. State Contract Manual Requirements (Section 3.11, Federally Funded Contracts 
(Rev.  3/03): 
 
A. All contracts, except for State construction projects that are funded in whole or in 

part by the Federal government, must contain a thirty (30)-day cancellation 
clause and the following provisions: 
 
1) It is mutually understood between the parties that this contract may have 

been written for the mutual benefit of both parties before ascertaining the 
availability of congressional appropriation of funds to avoid program and 
fiscal delays that would occur if the contract were executed after that 
determination was made. 
 

2) This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made 
available to the State by the United States Government for the purpose of 
this Program. In addition, this contract is subject to any additional 
restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by the Congress or to any 
statute enacted by the Congress that may affect the provisions, terms, or 
funding of this contract in any manner. 

 
3) The parties mutually agree that if the Congress does not appropriate 

sufficient funds for the program, this contract shall be amended to reflect 
any reduction in funds. 

 
4) The Department has the option to invalidate the contract under the thirty 

(30) day cancellation clause or to amend the contract to reflect any 
reduction in funds. 

 
B. Exemptions from provisions A.1 through A.4 above may be granted by the 

Department of Finance provided that the director of the State agency can certify 
in writing that Federal funds are available for the term of the contract. 
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C. California Government Code § 8546.4(e) provides that State agencies receiving 
federal funds shall be primarily responsible for arranging for federally required 
financial and compliance audits, and shall immediately notify the Director of 
Finance, the State Auditor, and the State Controller when they are required to 
obtain federally required financial and compliance audits. 



Applications: Len Marabella - Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa

EXHIBIT E
Award Number
22-OORHC-00002

PO Number
 

Record Title
Len Marabella - Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa

Organization Name
Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa

Profile
pswan@srcharities.org

Section 1: Threshold Eligibility Requirements
This section asks about basic threshold eligibility requirements that must be met before submitting an application. Please read all
questions carefully.

Is your organization certified by HUD to offer housing counseling services with a certificate date prior to the NOFA
issue date?
Yes

If yes, please upload HUD certification showing date organization was certified
HUD Housing Counseling Certification.pdf

Is your organization a Tax-exempt organization under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 501 (a) as described in
IRC section 501(c) (26 U.S.C. 501 (a) and (c))?
Yes

If yes, please upload evidence of the Tax Exempt Status
1. Catholic Charities of Santa Rosa 501c3 Documentation.pdf

Is your organization in good standing under the laws and regulations of the organization's home state?
Yes

Is your organization authorized to do business in the State of California?
Yes

Is your organization in good standing with the California Department of Housing and Community Development?
Yes

Has your organization, any intended sub-Applicants, contractors, subcontractors, program partners, staff, or Team
Members ever been (or currently) debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or are declared ineligible or
voluntarily excluded from participation from federally assisted programs?
No

If no, please upload a SAM.gov screenshot showing the date of generation that demonstrates your organization is
in good standing with the Federal Government, has a registered and active DUNS number, and is not debarred or
prohibited from receiving federal funds.
SAMS Documentation.pdf

To reduce delays in the application review, award, and contracting processes applicants are required to use the HCD Board Resolution Document in 
Exhibit D of the NOFA announcement. A copy can also be downloaded from the solicitation listing: 
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/srmng_downloadSolicitationFileExt/SOLICITATIONFILEID/_nE9W4_PKxs~



Upload fully executed Board Resolution
Board Resolution and Authorizations submit.pdf

Are there single audits of your organization on file?
Yes

If yes, upload your organization's most recent single audit (single file, PDF or Word format)
CCSR Audited Financials 19.20.pdf

In your organization's most recent single audit, were there any findings by the auditing entity?
No

Please complete and upload the form STD 204 found in the solicitation listing:
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/srmng_downloadSolicitationFileExt/SOLICITATIONFILEID/o62ovzbuf14~
1.2 STD 204 - Payee Data Record.pdf

You have provided information to the Department about your organization's experience, processes, policies, and
procedures related to the management of federal funding. If this application is selected, these submissions, in
addition to discussions you have with the Department, have been used to inform this Agreement and are being
materially relied upon by the Department in agreeing to enter into this Agreement.
LM

Should there be substantive changes to your organization, key personnel, methods, capacity, policies, or processes
that impact the implementation of this Agreement, your organization shall promptly notify the Department of said
changes
LM

During the term of this Agreement, your organization agrees to timely provide documents and information to
facilitate the Department’s Subrecipient monitoring risk assessment process. Your organization further agrees to
comply with the requirements, requests, and results of the Department’s risk assessment, including participation in
Subrecipient monitoring events
LM

Section 2: Mandatory Requirements
2.1 Applicant must submit to HCD organizational documents, and all amendments thereto, as well as related documents, all of
which will vary depending on the Applicant’s organization-type, and may include (but are not limited to) Articles of Incorporation,
Certificates of Limited Partnership, Articles of Organization, Bylaws, Operating Agreements, Partnership Agreements, Joint Venture
Agreements, Certificates of Good Standing

Please upload all organizational documents as one PDF or Word file
Organizational Documents.pdf

2.2 Financial Controls

Please upload your organization's proposed policies and procedures to show how the organization maintains sufficient internal
financial controls

Please upload all policies and procedures as one PDF or Word file
Fin Control Policies Procedures.pdf

If financial management policies and procedures are included in another document reference the document name,
if they are not available provide status of development.
NA

2.3 Conflict of Interest Policies and Certification

Applicant must certify that no officer, agent or employee of the Government of the State of California, HCD, or its Government
Entities and instrumentalities, has a monetary interest in the Application or has participated in contract negotiations on behalf of
the Government of the State of California or HCD; that the Application is made in good faith without fraud, collusion, or connection
of any kind with any other Applicants; that the Applicant is competing solely in its own behalf without connection with, or obligation



to, any undisclosed person or firm; and that the Applicant has not been convicted or has plead guilty in a state or federal court or
any other jurisdiction of the United States of America.

Upload Conflict of Interest Policies and Procedures and/or Conflict of Interest certification
Conflict of Interest Policies Procedures.pdf

If conflict of interest policies and procedures and/or certification are included in another document reference the
document name, if they are not available provide status of development.
NA

Section 3: Qualification Requirements
3.1 Capacity to Provide Services

Provide a brief history (Profile) of your organization's history of performing the housing counseling activities you
indicated in the eligibility section.
Catholic Charities has provided Housing Counseling services for over 10 years.  CCDSR is the only certified HUD Housing 
Counseling Agency serving Napa and Lake Counties and is one of only two serving Sonoma County. Our agency is committed to 
serving the underserved and most vulnerable, thus we serve all, but focus upon target groups including those with low-incomes, 
at risk or experiencing homelessness, veterans, that live with physical or mental challenges, are immigrants, English Language 
learners, disaster survivors, and underrepresented cultural groups. 

Agency HUD Housing Counselors provide independent, customized information and support responding to client needs addressing 
housing barriers and advancing housing goals.  Counseling includes intake, client budgeting, financial and Housing Affordability 
Analysis, Client Action Plans, and Follow up. 

Housing Counseling can take the form of one-on-one, workshops, in person or via phone or computer, depending on the needs of 
the client and aligned with local public health orders when pandemic and other disasters are present. 
1. Fair Housing Pre-Purchase Education  
2. Financial Management/Budget Counseling
3. Financial, Budgeting, and Credit 
4. Home Improvement & Rehabilitation Counseling 
5. Mortgage Delinquency and Default Resolution Counseling
6. Non-Delinquency Post Purchase
7. Predatory Lending Education 
8. Pre-Purchase Homebuyer Education 
9. Pre-Purchase Counseling
10. Rental Housing Counseling
11. Rental Housing 
12. Resolving/Preventing Mortgage Delinquency 
13. Reverse Mortgage Counseling
14. Services for Homeless Counseling
15. Disaster Preparation and Post Disaster navigation and resource access and support. 

Aligned with HUD’s commitment to “Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing”, recognizing the importance of equitable treatment and
access to housing education and resources for long term housing stability, CCSR’s Housing Counseling services strive to protect 
the integrity of our clients and their access to resources regardless of any protected characteristics. We work to support clients in 
combatting discrimination and overcoming barriers to affordable housing is to educate clients and landlords on fair housing rights 
and to establish relationships with local landlords to combat discrimination and support successful housing connections. When 
needed, we provide Legal Aid referrals for clients experiencing discrimination. As noted below, Housing Counseling staff attend 
two fair housing trainings per year to deepen their understanding of fair housing rights and better serve clients, especially those 
of protected classes.

Provide your organization's tax-ID
942479393



Provide the year your organization was formed
1954

Does your organization have a valid, active registration in the System for Award Management (SAM)?
Yes

Provide your organization's Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) identifier.
847356318

Please provide a detailed description of your organization's form of business
Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa (CCDSR) is a 501 (c ) 3 organization incorporated in 1954, that serves the six 
counties: Sonoma, Napa, Mendocino, Lake, Humboldt, and Del Norte. Our mission is to respond to Christ’s call to care for the most 
vulnerable, of all beliefs and cultures, transforming lives and communities through dignity, hope, and love. The agency provides 
direct service and advocacy to over 25,000 people annually and develops programs in direct response to the changing needs of 
the community. 

Current programs include: 
• Financial Stability services including: rental, mortgage, and utility assistance, HUD Certified Housing Counseling, free tax filing, 
financial education, budgeting, and credit repair
• Immigration Legal services: naturalization, work authorization, permanent residency and citizenship, DACA and other remedies; 
• Resource Connections: emergency food distribution, nutrition education, and benefit enrollment;
• Housing services such as transitional and permanent supportive housing; 
• Emergency Shelters and Homeless services: Street outreach, emergency overnight shelters, day centers, and medical respite 
centers;
• Senior services: Daily telephone Reassurance check-ins, and transportation for homebound seniors; and
• Disaster Response and Recovery programs, providing immediate relief, access to public and community based supports and 
assistance, and long-term disaster case management 
         for those with unmet needs.

Provide a list of the names, telephone numbers and email addresses of your organization's officers, directors,
members, and any partners, if applicable
Director Name Phone Email Mailing Address

Bishop Robert Vasa
Chairman (707) 953-8922 bpvasa@srdiocese.org
P.O. Box 1297
Santa Rosa, CA 95402

James Nantell
President (707) 836-1143
(650) 274-9941 jimandchrisnanman@gmail.com
950 Woody Creek Lane
Windsor, CA

Rick Abbott
Vice President (707) 495-3623 abbsfam@sonic.net
2620 Sunrise Avenue
Santa Rosa, CA 95409

Catherine Trione
Secretary (707) 318-8474 clrtrione@gmail.com
920 Madelyne Court,
Santa Rosa,  CA 95409

Dennis Harter
Treasurer (707) 696-9305 dennis.harter17@gmail.com
1017 McDonald Place,



Santa Rosa, CA  95404.

Len Marabella
Chief Executive Officer (707)  217-1356 lmarabella@srcharities.org
7170 Fairfield Dr
Santa Rosa, CA 95409

Dennis J. Byrne (707) 338-9394 djbyrne@aol.com
726 College Avenue
Santa Rosa, CA 95404

Frank Connelly (707) 494-9563 frankinvestments1@gmail.com
109 Dahlia Street
St Helena, CA 9574

Denise Dixon (707) 695-2244 denise@miralee.com
9627 Lakewood Drive
Windsor, CA 95492

Merry Edwards (707) 483-3333 maedwards@sonic.net
636 Gold Ridge Road
Sebastopol, CA

Tony Hildesheim (707) 576-5151
(707) 494-5066 THildesheim@redwoodcu.org
1116 Lanewood Way
Santa Rosa, 95404

Ernesto Olivares (707) 888-8894 ernesto.olivares@providence.org
2163 Linwood Ave. 
Santa Rosa, CA 95404

Loie Sauer (707) 484-6090 lsauer@sonic.net
PO Box 2122
Santa Rosa, CA 95405

Beth Ryan (707) 849-2105 beth.ryan@exchangebank.com
3101 Luna Court
Santa Rosa, CA 95405

Michael A. Sullivan (707) 484-5533 Michael.A.Sullivan@comcast.net
1251 Beattie Lane
Sebastopol, Ca 95472

Provide a point of contact for this application (minimum name, job title, email, phone number)
Pamela Swan
Director of Funding Partnerships 
Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
707-308-4799
pswan@srcharities.org

Upload an Organizational Chart of your organization with lines of responsibility and authority in the administration
of the Applicant’s business as a housing counseling organization.
Org Chart for Grant CDBG DR submit.pdf

Provide an availability chart that shows: immediate availability; availability of the staff in a year; percentages of available time; and
committed time to other projects.



NOTE: If your organization is not based in California, you must provide the functional full-time equivalents (FTEs) that will be based
and staffed in California.

Upload your availability chart as a single document (single file, PDF or Word format)
Availability Chart submit.pdf

Is there any pending, threatened, or recent (within the past five (5) years) litigation, arbitration, sanctions and/or
administrative complaints against your organization or your subcontractor, if subcontracting applies?
No

Describe how performance on previous housing counseling projects and contracts for federal programs qualifies
your organization to develop and implement this project, especially any disaster related housing counseling
projects
CCDSR is a non-profit, HUD-Certified housing counseling organization that provides guidance, advice, and other technical 
assistance to low-income clients who may or may be survivors of local disasters. CCDSR seeks to support applicants of the HCD 
ReCoverCA housing program(s) from the 2017 DR-4344 and DR-4353 disaster impacted counties of Lake, Mendocino, Napa, and 
Sonoma. 

HUD Housing counselors provide a broad array of HUD approved housing counseling related services, such as financial counseling, 
referrals to legal services and additional resources, and other assistance and referrals, particularly to vulnerable clients. 

Through our 11+ years in HUD Certified Housing Counseling, CCDSR has successfully executed federal Housing Counseling grant 
contracts primarily serving Lake, Napa, Sonoma, and Mendocino Counties.  In FY20-21 certified HUD Housing Counselors served 
246 individuals.  Of those households served through CCDSR’s HUD-funded Housing Counseling services, 91% earned 80% or less 
of AMI, 100% worked with a counselor and received financial management and budgeting support to develop a sustainable 
household budget. Over 92% gained access to resources (rent, utility, security assistance), enabling them to improve their 
housing status. A notable 48% of participants were provided HUD-funded rental counseling avoiding eviction, which reflects the 
heightened housing insecurity of those in our service region that has a severe lack of affordable housing, compounded by major 
fire disaster loss, which in Sonoma County alone accounted for a loss of 5% of all housing in 2017.  

CCDSR is currently participating in a CalHFA National Mortgage Settlement Counseling Program grant contract providing housing 
counseling sessions through HUD-certified staff Disaster case managers trained in housing counseling specifically for disaster 
survivors, especially those with unmet needs related to rebuilds.

Recognizing the increasing urgent need for Housing Counseling in disaster impacted and prone communities, CCDSR is eager to 
leverage existing experience, staffing, and deep community relationships with vulnerable populations and partner organizations 
during this critical time. CCDSR has been refining and working towards expanding Housing Counseling services for over five years, 
including receiving CCUSA sponsorship to receive technical assistance through Prosperity Now (AKA Corporation for Enterprise 
Development (CFED)). Catholic Charities initiated and hosted the Bay Area Asset Building Leadership Convening, attended by 40 
prominent County, United Way, Northern California Catholic Charities, and other regional asset building advocates and experts. 
CCDSR has sought and implemented funding opportunities to expand opportunities for underserved and vulnerable populations to 
develop assets and housing counseling support, but a significant funding gap remains compared to the level of community need 
for these services within the Diocese. 

3.2 Managerial, Organization, and Technical Capabilities



Provide a description which demonstrates your organization has personnel capable of handling the services
required herein, include names of all Key Personnel who will administer the proposed CDBG-DR activities
All case management staff within the Financial Stability and Case Management teams are trained in addressing the most common 
needs related to housing counseling support for low-income individuals. In addition, the Community Recovery team is trained and 
has deep experience in the resources and particular vulnerabilities associated with serving disaster survivors. Three of the 
financial stability staff were previously on the Community Recovery team as well, so they have already completed training and 
have experience with supporting disaster survivors. All staff who support clients directly for this grant will have active HUD 
certifications. 

Managers and Assistant Directors will support all program requirements from training, purchasing items needed, coordinating 
housing referrals, scheduling time for case conferencing on difficult cases, data analysis, and reporting. 

Key personnel administering CDBG-DR activities:
• 3 Case Managers, Financial Stability - Maria Arreguin, Verenice Portales, Rocio Salinas - currently HUD certified; Wendy Gattoni - 
not yet HUD certified
• 2 Case Managers, Community Recovery - Adrian Adrias, TBD - not yet HUD certified
• 2 Managers - Martha Zuniga (Community Recovery), Felix Carvajal (Financial Stability)
• 2 Assistant Directors - Melissa Reece (Community Recovery), TBD (Financial Stability)

Provide resumes for all Key Personnel. Resumes must include: title, tenure at current position, main responsibilities, experience
including begin and end dates, skills, and education, including HUD Certification(s).

At minimum, the personnel should cover the following areas of responsibility:
-Executive Management
-Financial Oversight of Expenditures
-Project Management
-Program Compliance & Reporting
-Housing Counseling Services

Upload resumes for all Key Personnel (single file, PDF or Word format)
Resumes Key Personnel CDBG DR.pdf

Does the applicant represent and certify that Applicant staff, Key Personnel, and Team Members shall have and
maintain, throughout the duration of the Agreement, valid and current   licenses or authorizations when applicable
and required to perform the tasks or works to be performed under the Agreement?
Yes

Describe your organization's experience in maintaining compliance with the financial management requirements of
2 CFR §200, including the single audit requirements of 2 CFR §200.501
Catholic Charities maintains high grant contract and spending visibility and transparency through the agency’s internal document 
management system (see attached Financial Controls Policies and Procedures). Grant Accountants assigned to the HUD Housing 
Counseling Program are well versed in 2 CFR Part 200, and successfully stewarded over 10 years of federal Hud Housing 
Counseling grants, CDBG, ESG, VA, USDA and other federal grants. Finally, we welcome an annual financial audit through an 
external, independent audit firm. The scope of the audit includes a review of internal controls to confirm our transactions are 
following the terms and conditions of Federal awards. Our Audit engagements include a requirement to perform a single audit of 
our grants recording, invoicing and compliance management as part of our continuous quality improvement plan. 

3.3 Applicant Experience



Provide a brief description of your organization's experience and major accomplishments in providing programs/
services to populations that have been affected by a major disaster (individuals, households, businesses,
organizations) and/or vulnerable populations.
Since its establishment in 1954, CCDSR’s mission has been to serve the most vulnerable, including those impacted by disaster. 
Catholic Charities has 30+ year record of human services in Sonoma, Napa, and Lake counties serving more than 20,000 
households per year in our shelters and transitional or permanent supportive housing programs, immigration legal services, and 
food and health benefits and enrollment. Catholic Charities targets communities that are underserved and ethnically diverse, 
including Latinx, Native American, Asian, African American as well as low-income, rural, immigrant, those living with physical and 
mental challenges, and the housing at-risk and unsheltered.  

In response to the 2017 North Bay Wildfire, CCDSR received the first FEMA Disaster Case Management Grant awarded in the 
nation for fire recovery and was a leader in the process of establishing data sharing systems for Long-Term Recovery Group 
(LTRG) peers and training over 100 disaster case managers. The agency also assumed leadership roles in each of the Community 
Organizations Active in Disasters (COADs) in Napa, Sonoma, and Lake counties, chairing committees including the Unmet Needs 
Committee as well as the LTRGs. In response to the 2017 wildfires, CCDSR provided over 3,000 households with immediate basic 
needs. Shifting to long term support, the agency has engaged over 2,100 households. More than 1,200 households have 
completed or are working on a Recovery Plan with a CCDSR or partner Disaster Case Manager and nearly $2 million has been 
distributed to address disaster survivors’ basic and rental assistance needs. 

3.4 Staffing

Please describe your staffing plan in detail
Staffing Plan

All case management staff within the Financial Stability and Case Management teams are trained in addressing the most common 
needs related to housing counseling support for low-income individuals. In addition, the Community Recovery team is trained and 
has deep experience in the resources and particular vulnerabilities associated with serving disaster survivors. Three of the 
financial stability staff were previously on the Community Recovery team as well, so they have already completed training and 
have experience with supporting disaster survivors. All staff who support clients directly for this grant will have active HUD 
certifications. 

Key personnel administering CDBG-DR activities:
• 3 Case Managers, Financial Stability - Maria Arreguin, Verenice Portales, Rocio Salinas - currently HUD certified; Wendy Gattoni - 
not yet HUD certified
• 2 Case Managers, Community Recovery - Adrian Adrias, TBD - not yet HUD certified
• 2 Managers - Martha Zuniga (Community Recovery), Felix Carvajal (Financial Stability)
• 1 Assistant Director - Melissa Reece (Community Recovery)

Initially, all services will be performed by the three existing HUD certified staff on the financial stability team in consultation with 
members of the Community Recovery team as needed.
Three Disaster Case Managers are currently studying for the HUD exam, and as soon as they pass the exam, they will take on the 
majority of cases. 
Managers and Assistant Directors will support all program requirements from training to purchasing items needed and scheduling 
time to case conferencing on difficult cases. 

Section 4: Workplan Requirement

Please upload an organization chart for all Team Members who will administer CDBG-DR funded activities. At minimum, the
organization chart should cover the following areas:

Executive Management
Financial Oversight of Expenditures
Project Management
Program Compliance & Reporting
Housing Counseling Services

Upload CDBG-DR activities organization chart (single file, PDF or Word format)
CDBG DR OOR HOUSING COUNSELING STAFF CHART .xlsx



4.1 Service Activity Scope

Certify that you have viewed and understand the activity area map attached to the solicitation listing:
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/srmng_downloadSolicitationFileExt/SOLICITATIONFILEID/1XC3GZM3Jwc~
I have reviewed the eligible service area maps attached in the solicitation listing

For each proposed activity indicated above, please describe the 1) target population(s), 2) service delivery areas,
and 3) staffing
All proposed activities noted above will include:

1. Target Populations 
Presidentially declared disaster survivors of 2017 and 2018 Federally declared Disasters; (DR4344, DR 4382), including low-
income homeowners; Latinx and other minority communities - staff are all bilingual and bicultural, and serve clients whose 
primary language is Spanish; individuals with access and functional needs such as transportation issues, lack of access to 
technology, lack of access to information about disaster resources, elderly and people with disabilities, and people with language 
concerns. 

CCDSR is particularly dedicated to addressing disaster impacted rural areas having traditionally low levels of access to housing 
counseling services, including areas with insufficient access to the internet and other technological supports.  CCDSR prides itself 
on its “Love for All” philosophy in providing services that are not only expert and unbiased but also fully accessible to all, 
regardless of disability (mobility, sensory, developmental, emotional, physical, etc.), age, race, housing status, immigration 
status, location, access to technology, etc.

2. Service Delivery Areas
Mendocino, Napa, Sonoma, and Lake counties. Staff have contacts and experience working in both rural and urban parts of these 
counties and are well-versed in the resources and housing availability in each county.

3. HUD-certified housing counselors and disaster case managers will bring together their expertise to support all checked items. It 
is our agency’s intention to continue to advance additional staff (3+) in testing and certification under HUD standards. 

4.2 Applicant Understanding of Regulations and Population Needs

Which of the services below can your organization provide? (Check all that apply)
Applying for public and private resources, Explaining ReCoverCA Program(s), Reviewing the process involved in obtaining
financing (including the selection of a lender), Explaining insurance options including budget impacts and risks, Short and
long-term budgeting counseling, Financial resources assessment, Credit Repair counseling, Negotiating mortgage and rent
forbearance, Acting as a safeguard against fraud and scams including identifying discrimination, when applicable, Wildfire
season planning and preparation as it relates to temporary and long-term housing, Advocacy with insurance and mortgage
companies, Connection to other resources that provide home repair relief and emergency assistance, Individualized education
addressing how to remediate mold, lead, or other health hazards, Establish a property purchase eligibility and affordability
threshold on an applicant-by-applicant basis, Evaluating a client’s completed Uniform Residential Loan Application (Fannie
Mae Form 1003/Freddie Mac Form 65), Pre-purchase homebuyer education, Relocation counseling for home purchase options,
Other Housing Counseling management services permitted under HUD Housing Counselor activities

Which of the areas below can your organization serve? (Check all that apply)
Lake County, Mendocino County, Napa County, Sonoma County



Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with: The needs and
difficulties or challenges facing the disaster impacted populations
Disaster Impacted Populations - Needs & Difficulties

The three target counties and their populations each face some of the most extreme housing and disaster challenges in California. 
Sonoma and Napa counties are some of the least affordable communities in the country, experiencing broad income inequality. 
Sonoma County was officially declared to be in a “Homeless Emergency” by the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors on 
December 17, 2019 and this declaration continues to date due to the combined impacts of the loss of over 5% of all housing due 
to the 2017 Tubbs Fire, the 2019 Kincade Fire housing losses, numerous sizable homeless encampments, and extremely low rates 
of affordable housing inventory at below 1%.  Note that all these elements were in place prior to the Covid-19 pandemic and are 
now even more exacerbated. 

Napa County shares Sonoma County’s challenge of being one of the nation's most desirable places to live, which in addition to the 
cost of housing development, regulations that limit affordable development the county has a severe lack of affordable housing 
inventory. Disasters have impacted the scale of housing stock since 2017, with a combined loss of over 6% of housing in the 
Tubbs Fire, an affordable housing inventory of less than 1%, and 50% of ELI households paying more than half of their income on 
housing.

Lake County, one of California’s most remote and rural counties, is perennially the poorest county in the state, periodically trading 
places with Imperial County. Since 2015 and four devastating fire seasons, 60% of land mass has burned, including 1,825 homes, 
resulting in a loss of 5.5% of housing stock. Now, with COVID-19 orders leading to even greater numbers of job losses, families in 
the region are reeling from the impact of four years of natural and medical calamities. Additionally, Disaster survivors have special
vulnerabilities related to disaster trauma. 

Past Experience
CCDSR was active in the immediate relief and recovery efforts during the 2006 floods, the relocation of Hurricane Katrina victims 
to northern California, the 2008 Napa Floods, the 2015 Lake County fires, the 2017 North Bay firestorms, and the 2019 Kincade 
Fire, and the 2020 Cache Fire. Through this long history of providing immediate and long-term disaster recovery services to the 
most vulnerable populations in our communities, CCDSR has learned and grown in our services and partnership. The integration of 
our internal programs as well as our ongoing partnerships with other community agencies means disaster survivors receive 
holistic support that acknowledges and addresses their complex needs. Specific accomplishments include: 

In response to the challenging conditions our target region’s disaster survivors experience, Catholic Charities’ Disaster service 
methodology includes trauma informed care, delivered with integrity and respect,  informed through accreditation policies and 
procedures ( Council on Accreditation) and FEMA codified policies and procedures. This support includes creating and successfully 
completing housing recovery plans. Survivors may require counseling services on property issues, financial management, disaster 
recovery funding resources, financial and credit literacy, preparedness and mitigation planning, and other areas dependent on 
client situation. Our process is client-centered, and supports survivors in determining their own housing recovery plan, improving 
their housing conditions, and meeting their financial needs with support from our housing counselors and based on the reality of 
their financial situation and available Disaster and other supportive resources, including Disaster CalFresh, FEMA funding, and 
CalRecover CA OOR. 



Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with: The ReCoverCA
Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Program
Past Experience 

CCDSR worked to assist clients to obtain the ReCoverCa loan in Lake and Mendocino Counties for the 2017 and 2018 Wildfires and 
for the CalHome loan for 2015 and 2016 wildfires in Lake and Mendocino Counties. 

2015/2016 CalHome: CCDSR Disaster Case Managers assisted with outreach, intake, assessment and recovery planning, and all 
phases of construction analysis support for both conventional stick build rebuilds and Manufactured housing purchases and 
installations in conjunction with the Long Term Recovery Group, Team Lake County.  CCDSR case managers provided scopes of 
work as needed for the loan program. We developed 5-year sustainability plans with clients for housing stability that included 
home maintenance, property tax increases, homeowner insurance and basic utility costs, as well as disaster preparedness prior to 
rebuilds being funded.

2017/2018 ReCoverCa: CCDSR Case Management developed recovery plans and goals with clients and helped clients to log in to 
ReCoverCa website to complete surveys, provide documents requested and present cases for gap funding to cover unmet needs 
while ReCoverCa funding was being processed. Case Managers walked clients through rebuild processes, re-purchase processes 
and provided scope of work as needed in conjunction with HCD case management staff.

Capacity Building 
If awarded, CCDSR HUD Housing Counseling staff will take the related CA HCD training to ensure full comprehension and 
compliance with the current ReCover CA Owner Occupied Rehab Program. Additionally, to supplement existing Housing 
Counselors, CCDSR is currently equipping 3 additional Disaster Case Managers with the tools necessary to pass the HUD certified 
housing counseling exam.
If awarded, CCDSR HUD Housing Counseling staff will take the CA HCD training to ensure full comprehension and compliance with 
the If awarded, CCDSR HUD Housing Counseling staff will take the CA HCD training to ensure full comprehension and compliance 
with the current ReCover CA Owner Occupied Rehab Program. 

Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with:  Developing a housing
recovery plan for each individual assisted
CCDSR-Disaster Case Management program staff include construction analysis for rebuild cost analysis and are certified by the 
CFPB in credit counseling. Client recovery plans include budget and credit counseling services. The CCDSR Disaster Case 
Management program includes resource referrals and planning for up to date insurance and tax planning prior to case closing. The
program also offers information to clients from internal and external resources to inform clients about mortgage products and 
services, rebuild costs, property tax assessments, insurance costs, availability and needs. CCDSR will include ongoing staff 
trainings to keep up to date information readily available to clients and include training for clients to obtain the same information 
on their own after their case is closed

Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with:  Budgetary needs for
conventional mortgage financing, and/or rebuilding costs, including potential property tax increases, and
hazard/fire/flood insurance availability and costs
CCDSR HUD Certified Counselors and Disaster Case Management program staff include construction analysis for rebuild cost 
analysis and are certified by the CFPB in credit counseling. Client recovery plans include budget and credit counseling services. 
The CCDSR Disaster Case Management program includes resource referrals and planning for up to date insurance and tax 
planning prior to case closing. The program also offers information to clients from internal and external resources to inform clients 
about mortgage products and services, rebuild costs, property tax assessments, insurance costs, availability and needs. CCDSR 
will include ongoing staff trainings to keep up to date information readily available to clients and include training for clients to 
obtain the same information on their own after their case is closed



Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with:  Predatory lending
practices and how to educate participants
The CCDSR housing counseling team provides important ongoing safeguards in the prevention of housing scams and 
discrimination and serve as a gateway to local, state, federal, and private housing assistance and resources.

Housing counselors provide support to clients around the following areas, and this grant will allow us to increase our capacity to 
provide additional support to 2017 and 2018 disaster survivors referred from CA HCD:
o Support clients in the understanding of loan programs and what to look for to determine if the loan is predatory.
o  Increase client awareness of predatory tactics and practices
o Provide client advocacy on reporting abusive practices
o Provide clients with informational resources like brochures on predatory lending and next steps.
o Provide training opportunities to counselors for up to date knowledge on predatory lending topics and associated subjects.
o Establish partnerships with local banking and government institutions for knowledge on available loan programs

Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with:  How the organization
will address one or more of these needs and problems with its available resources
CCDSR has programs to tackle many financial and housing stability concerns supported by complimentary funding sources, which 
if merited will be made available to CDBG DR OOR participants, including: 
o Benefit enrollment 
o Food distributions
o Homelessness prevention and rental/utility assistance funds
o Tax preparation and ITIN services
o Financial stability programs specifically targeted to undocumented and survivors of domestic abuse and human trafficking
o Immigration legal services
o Housing location services
o Shelter services 

CCDSR staff, and especially new staff, will take full advantage of curricula and special trainings offered through the CDBG-DR 
award to ensure full, current knowledge of the ReCoverCA programs.

Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with: The geographic
service area to be served
As noted above, Catholic Charities has over 30 years of experience serving the target population of the CDBG DR OOR grant in 
Lake, Mendocino, Napa and Sonoma Counties.  We have experienced, specialized staff and offices in each of these counties and 
have dedicated, robust partnerships with peer providers, local parishes, and the state target population.  Examples of service 
provision and capacity building include: 

Sonoma County – Lead local COAD, county’s largest HUD Housing Counseling provider and housing and homeless service 
provider;
Lake County – Primary Disaster Relief and Recovery CBO, wrap around services include public benefit outreach and enrollment, 
emergency food, and immigration legal services 
Napa County – Disaster Relief and Recovery, Homeless and Housing services (Rainbow House Family Shelter, and Permanent 
Supportive housing)

Provide description of past experience or plan to acquire knowledge and build capacity with:  The anticipated
results (outcomes) to be achieved within the term of the Agreement
Anticipated results include at a minimum,  155 clients served with 1-3 housing counseling sessions (up to 465 sessions). 

As noted above, CCDSR has considerable experience with tracking and reporting on HUD Housing Counseling and CDBG 
deliverables on HUD housing counseling, as well as a housing counseling grant through the California Housing and Finance 
Authority (CalHFA), as noted above.  All past grant contracts and reporting of outcomes have been successfully executed to date. 

4.3 Implementation Methodology



Explain your organization's methodology for the proposed service project implementation.
CCDSR’s methodology will be build upon the agency’s current robust implementation of disaster case management recovery 
programs and HUD-certified housing counseling. Project implementation will start with the completion of a full integration of these 
two programs to ensure full client access to expertise from both program areas. This integration will be complete with the passing 
of the HUD exam by additional disaster case managers. 

CCDSR will accept referrals from ReCoverCA. Case managers will be assigned cases based on their ability to support client’s 
needs (language, ability) and their current caseload to ensure clients receive ample time with their case managers.

Case managers will bring cases to bi-weekly case conferencing sessions for review by program managers and assistant directors. 
These case conferencing sessions will provide case managers with guidance on difficult cases and provide oversight of case 
closures, ensuring all resource and service related avenues are exhausted for clients, especially those with access and functional 
needs. 

Upon receiving ReCoverCA referrals, internal client referrals will be made via the Efforts to Outcomes database, as well as 
externally for client need of resources our agency does not provide, using trusted referral platforms including UniteUs. Client 
confidentiality and sound data practices will be utilized, and client information will never be shared without a signed Release of 
Information (ROI) and if merited, a Data Sharing Agreement may be required.  Budgeting and expense tracking will be completed 
by Assistant Directors and the accounting and compliance teams. Staff time will be allocated by directors, and oversight for staff 
time entered will be overseen by managers. 

Modes of Counseling 
HUD certified Housing Counseling workshops and one-on-one counseling sessions will be provided via face-to-face casework 
meetings, telephone, or online, and be available in Spanish and English.  CCDSR complies with Public Health orders and migrates 
as needed to COVID 19 approved protocols, and has capacity to serve clients virtually. 

Building trust and consistency is a vital aspect of Housing Counseling work, so our team works with the clients to develop 
communication plans that fit their individual needs and level of technical knowledge. Additionally, when needed, Housing 
Counselors meet with clients in the field, especially those that have limited access, are remote or face other transportation or 
technology challenges. 

CCDSR ensures program access and equitable reach via:
• The implementation of a Limited English Proficiency Policy for persons who do not speak English as their primary language. The 
Policy outlines a Language Access Plan with criteria for the provision of translated documents and/or the use of an interpreter, 
including sign language. 
• Requesting clients at intake to disclose disability-related needs to ensure special accommodations are provided as needed (e.g., 
providing large-print materials or sign language interpretation services);
• Reliable and consistent client data collection and analysis to ensure the most vulnerable in the community are being adequately 
reached, served, and are seeing positive outcomes from the investment of their time us;
• Membership of the region’s Volunteer Organizations Active in Disasters (VOADs) and leadership in disaster relief and long-term 
recovery in the target counties, providing immediate disaster emergency relief, and longer-term disaster housing counseling as 
well as financial assistance for unmet needs. 

What is your organization's proposed timeline for the project?
CCDSR projects a three year timeline for the grant term. 

4.4 Monitoring and Evaluation



Describe your organization's experience on how to track and monitor (evaluation tools) the progress of the services
and/or activities utilizing CDBG-DR funds
CCDSR obtained accreditation through the Council on Accreditation (COA) in March 2013, and our accreditation was renewed in 
October 2017. As part of the rigorous accreditation preparation and review process, the agency developed comprehensive policies 
and procedures for all programs and services, including housing counseling and disaster case management tracking and 
monitoring policies and procedures. 

CCDSR has over ten years of experience successfully implementing, evaluating and executing HUD CDBG grant contracts.  The 
HUD Housing Counseling and CDBG DR funds will be tracked via the agency’s case management system Efforts to Outcomes 
(ETO) database tracking client registration, progress toward housing action plan target outcomes, services and outcomes.  All 
HUD-required data is collected on touchpoints within ETO for every client as well as detailed case notes and recovery plan 
documents. The touchpoints would be adjusted to note when a client is associated with this CDBG-DR grant.

The Director of Financial Stability and Crisis Response retains ultimate responsibility to ensure compliance with the Housing 
Counseling grant and program performance requirements. To facilitate that compliance, the Director and staff directly involved in 
the execution of grant-funded activities receive and read the funding contract and related regulations, participate in mandatory 
trainings, meet monthly to review and create solutions regarding difficult housing counseling cases, generate monthly and 
quarterly program reports using the agency’s case management system (ETO), and participate in ongoing agency-wide 
performance quality improvement activities year-round. 

Additionally, as a sub-grantee to Catholic Charities USA, CCDSR is monitored regularly to determine compliance with HUD Housing 
Counseling performance guidelines, outcome measures, and budget policies.

Explain how your organization will track and monitor (evaluation tools) the progress of the services proposed
and/or activities utilizing CDBG-DR funds
CCDSR utilizes Efforts to Outcomes to track all client registrations, services, and referrals. All HUD-required data is collected on 
touchpoints within ETO for every client as well as detailed case notes and recovery plan documents. The touchpoints would be 
adjusted to note when a client is associated with this CDBG-DR grant.

4.5 Compliance with Federal Policy and Procedure

Describe your organization's experience complying with federal policy and procedural requirements
As noted above, Catholic Charities has significant experience complying with federal policy and procedural requirements, 
including procedural and financial requirements of 2 CFR 200, including the single audit requirement. The agency has successfully 
stewarded over 10 years of HUD Housing Counseling, CDBG (15+ years), VA (10+ years), and other Federal Grant contracts

Explain how your organization will comply with federal policy and procedural requirements
The Compliance program within CCDSR is a high priority for our agency. Our agency has a focused direction to adhere to all 
compliance requirements from implementation, program management and financial reporting. Within our Agency-wide 
compliance program, we have dedicated staff to document internal review of grant contracts, reporting content, as well as 
calendared dates to meet contract deadlines. The agency has a dedicated team of Grant accountants focused on proactively 
reviewing financial compliance requirements, ensuring our acquisition cost for goods and services comply with the terms and 
conditions of Federal awards. 

Catholic Charities maintains high grant contract and spending visibility and transparency through the agency’s internal document 
management system (see attached Financial Controls Policies and Procedures). Grant Accountants assigned to the HUD Housing 
Counseling Program are well versed in 2 CFR Part 200.430.  Finally, we welcome an annual financial audit through an external, 
independent audit firm. The scope of the audit includes a review of internal controls to confirm our transactions are following the 
terms and conditions of Federal awards. Our Audit engagements include a requirement to perform a single audit of our grants 
recording, invoicing and compliance management as part of our continuous quality improvement plan. 

Does your organization represent and certify you will adhere to any requirements applicable to the CDBG-DR
Program?
I represent and certify that my organization will adhere to any requirements applicable to the CDBG-DR Program

Section 5: Budget Worksheets



Enter the total funding you are requesting from the CDBG-DR grant.
$267,741.70

How many beneficiaries does your organization intend to serve with the funds requested from this NOFA?
155

Comments or clarifications on budget proposal:
The proposed budget submitted is for a 3 year term, and is scalable given referral scope and available resources. Please see 
Budget Narrative for details.  We will serve at a minimum 155 participants already enrolled in Lake, Sonoma and Napa Counties 
for 1-3 sessions.  We welcome additional participants who may have yet to enroll from our region given the need for this service.

While the budget term is three years, this time period and projected expenses may shift in the event participants are served prior 
to grant term end. 

IMPORTANT: Before submitting your application, please scroll down to the bottom of this listing and complete the
eCivis Budget Worksheet. IF this worksheet is not submitted, then the total award amount will appear as "0" after
you submit your application
Yes, I certify that I have completed the eCivis budget worksheet

Average Score
150.00

View Budget Worksheet
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/peerBudget/90829B65-5513-422F-A233-1B6D6C69AFB1

View Application Goals
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/peerGoals/73EF2C22-1793-489C-AFA3-ED6613DA7FC0

# of Reviews
1

# of Denials
0

Applications: File Attachments

If yes, please upload HUD certification showing date organization was certified
HUD Housing Counseling Certification.pdf

If yes, please upload evidence of the Tax Exempt Status
1. Catholic Charities of Santa Rosa 501c3 Documentation.pdf

If no, please upload a SAM.gov screenshot showing the date of generation that demonstrates your organization is in
good standing with the Federal Government, has a registered and active DUNS number, and is not debarred or
prohibited from receiving federal funds.
SAMS Documentation.pdf

Upload fully executed Board Resolution
Board Resolution and Authorizations submit.pdf

If yes, upload your organization's most recent single audit (single file, PDF or Word format)
CCSR Audited Financials 19.20.pdf

Please complete and upload the form STD 204 found in the solicitation listing:
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/srmng_downloadSolicitationFileExt/SOLICITATIONFILEID/o62ovzbuf14~
1.2 STD 204 - Payee Data Record.pdf

Please upload all organizational documents as one PDF or Word file
Organizational Documents.pdf

Please upload all policies and procedures as one PDF or Word file



Fin Control Policies Procedures.pdf

Upload Conflict of Interest Policies and Procedures and/or Conflict of Interest certification
Conflict of Interest Policies Procedures.pdf

Upload an Organizational Chart of your organization with lines of responsibility and authority in the administration
of the Applicant’s business as a housing counseling organization.
Org Chart for Grant CDBG DR submit.pdf

Upload your availability chart as a single document (single file, PDF or Word format)
Availability Chart submit.pdf

Upload resumes for all Key Personnel (single file, PDF or Word format)
Resumes Key Personnel CDBG DR.pdf

Upload CDBG-DR activities organization chart (single file, PDF or Word format)
CDBG DR OOR HOUSING COUNSELING STAFF CHART .xlsx
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Santa Rosa, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa (a
California nonprofit corporation) (the ''Catholic Charities''), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the
novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) a global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures
worldwide. The ultimate financial impact and duration of these events cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 3, 2021, on our
consideration of the Catholic Charities's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Catholic Charities's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Catholic Charities's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa's 2019 financial statements, and our
report dated March 26, 2020 expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements.  In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

ArmaninoLLP

San Francisco, California

March 3, 2021
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

2020 2019

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,116,825 $ 3,006,676
Investments 6,866,361 7,518,162
Grants receivable 2,852,529 1,757,176
Promises to give, net 3,369,587 2,821,745
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 301,357 290,918
Property and equipment, net 13,301,524 11,788,188

Total assets $ 30,808,183 $ 27,182,865

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 395,190 $ 394,466
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,613,810 933,250
Accrued interest 246,377 229,144
Deferred revenue 3,500,000 3,517,807
Line of credit - 100,000
Refundable advance - Paycheck Protection Program 909,671 -
Notes payable 2,315,389 2,415,863

Total liabilities 8,980,437 7,590,530

Net assets
Without donor restrictions 10,704,928 9,646,474
With donor restrictions 11,122,818 9,945,861

Total net assets 21,827,746 19,592,335

Total liabilities and net assets $ 30,808,183 $ 27,182,865

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Without
Donor

Restrictions
With Donor
Restrictions

2020
Total

2019
Total

Revenues, gains, and other support
Government grants $ 10,403,636 $ - $ 10,403,636 $ 8,758,105
Government grant - Paycheck

Protection Program 1,239,884 - 1,239,884 -
Private grants and contributions 2,613,038 7,392,614 10,005,652 11,314,580
Program revenue 177,178 - 177,178 244,502
Retail store sales 175,889 - 175,889 454,707
Donated goods and services 419,341 - 419,341 683,338
Rental income 375,956 - 375,956 314,898
Loss on disposal of property and

equipment (1,849) - (1,849) -
Other revenue 75,462 - 75,462 149,696
Interest and dividends 125,267 6,442 131,709 114,522
Realized and unrealized gain on

investments, net 1,014 5,974 6,988 16,209
Net assets released from restriction 6,228,073 (6,228,073) - -

Total revenues, gains, and other
support 21,832,889 1,176,957 23,009,846 22,050,557

Functional expenses
Program services 18,115,858 - 18,115,858 15,385,938
Support services

Management and general 1,746,099 - 1,746,099 1,700,605
Fundraising 912,478 - 912,478 711,980

Total support services 2,658,577 - 2,658,577 2,412,585
Total functional expenses 20,774,435 - 20,774,435 17,798,523

Change in net assets 1,058,454 1,176,957 2,235,411 4,252,034

Net assets, beginning of year 9,646,474 9,945,861 19,592,335 15,340,301

Net assets, end of year $ 10,704,928 $ 11,122,818 $ 21,827,746 $ 19,592,335

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Program Services Support Services

Caritas
Village

Homeless
Services Housing Immigration

Community
and Parish
Services

Social
Enterprise

Management
and General Fundraising

2020
Total

2019
Total

Personnel expenses $ 185,440 $4,810,542 $1,105,646 $ 807,371 $ 3,153,721 $ 167,783 $ 1,306,933 $ 641,913 $12,179,349 $10,116,110
Donated supplies, food, and rent 20,000 14,583 31,141 - 182,896 170,721 - - 419,341 683,338
Telephone and utilities 1,936 303,070 144,774 28,101 91,868 25,879 77,842 14,731 688,201 669,087
Depreciation and amortization - 82,294 82,879 16,139 44,390 1,296 29,196 9,614 265,808 328,229
Supplies 1,765 456,303 44,722 17,123 265,241 2,657 21,978 13,660 823,449 646,073
Professional and outside services 1,756,455 227,832 65,025 46,649 223,754 5,847 135,291 46,169 2,507,022 1,595,724
Office rent - 54,636 746,939 1,800 21,847 93,150 4,744 670 923,786 903,420
Insurance - 23,533 9,123 7,268 32,702 2,276 9,064 3,151 87,117 82,612
Client assistance 139 237,413 921,195 24,010 1,141,856 - 300 164 2,325,077 1,888,097
Subcontractors and subrecipients - 150,668 - 297,932 144,547 - - - 593,147 493,216
Interest expense 82,939 - 9,405 - - - - - 92,344 108,826
Building repairs and maintenance 3,498 447,049 231,848 4,343 35,929 6,575 10,904 2,424 742,570 511,928
Meetings and conferences 326 16,997 3,165 2,100 21,790 926 11,353 6,771 63,428 50,713
Printing and advertising 6,147 5,800 2,327 1,608 23,153 4,946 14,882 67,733 126,596 99,083
Equipment rent and maintenance - 67,272 7,202 5,053 9,428 3,428 7,828 2,775 102,986 83,684
Travel 475 44,653 7,246 10,468 77,050 5,724 5,478 8,193 159,287 135,288
Miscellaneous - - - - - 10,550 - 60,000 70,550 69,057
Postage - 199 95 5,977 4,076 18 3,311 10,028 23,704 33,285
Dues and subscriptions 20 2,756 - 662 7,003 - 21,182 5,326 36,949 38,717
Bank fee and data processing - 7,056 3,528 - - 4,870 49,196 9,000 73,650 87,358
Taxes and licenses 10,228 16,389 10,875 10,438 51,720 129 36,617 10,156 146,552 119,192
Expenses for capital projects 1,676,478) - - - - - - - (1,676,478) (944,514)

$ 392,890 $6,969,045 $3,427,135 $ 1,287,042 $ 5,532,971 $ 506,775 $ 1,746,099 $ 912,478 $20,774,435 $17,798,523

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 2,235,411 $ 4,252,034
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

 provided by (used in) operating activities
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts 24,412 (21,331)
Change in discount on long-term promises to give 6,462 (6,097)
Depreciation and amortization 265,808 328,229
Forgiveness of note payable (81,241) (919,766)
Forgiveness of accrued interest (20,650) -
Donated investments - (3,515,190)
Contributions restricted for long-term investment (1,770,049) (6,054,495)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,849 -
Realized and unrealized gain on investments, net (6,988) (16,209)

Grants receivable (1,095,353) (104,886)
Promises to give (578,716) 198,617
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (10,439) 1,047
Accounts payable 724 171,082
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 680,560 175,155
Accrued interest 37,883 (141,400)
Deferred revenue (17,807) 3,517,807
Refundable advance - Paycheck Protection Program 909,671 -

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 581,537 (2,135,403)

Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of investments 5,600,000 4,733,545
Purchase of investments (4,941,211) (7,112,395)
Purchase of property and equipment (1,780,993) (2,132,535)

Net cash used in investing activities (1,122,204) (4,511,385)

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on notes payable (19,233) (17,989)
Payments on line of credit, net (100,000) (230,000)
Proceeds from borrowings on notes payable - 199,250
Contributions restricted for long-term investment 1,770,049 6,054,495

Net cash provided by financing activities 1,650,816 6,005,756

Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,110,149 (641,032)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,006,676 3,647,708

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4,116,825 $ 3,006,676

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 54,461 $ 55,705

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa ("Catholic Charities") is engaged in charitable
activities in the Roman Catholic Diocese of Santa Rosa (the "Diocese"). The Diocese
encompasses Sonoma, Lake, Mendocino, Napa, Del Norte, and Humboldt counties in Northern
California.  Catholic Charities serves over 20,000 children and adults annually through services
across its six-county service area, providing housing and homeless services, health and financial
wellness programs, senior services, immigration counseling and long-term disaster recovery
assistance.  Catholic Charities is funded though federal, city, county and state contracts in
addition to contributions from private foundations and individuals, corporation donations, rent,
program fees and revenue generated by the agency thrift store operation.

Programs

Caritas Village

 Caritas Village -  Caritas Village is Catholic Charities' affordable housing and services
development project located in downtown Santa Rosa, on land purchased by the agency in
2015.  Intended to replace facilities and enhance services that Catholic Charities has provided
onsite for over 30 years, Caritas Village will also include over 120 units of permanent
affordable housing to be funded, built, and managed in partnership with Burbank Housing, a
local affordable housing developer.  Thanks to onsite services such as a family shelter,
medical recuperation shelter, housing counseling programs, navigation center, and health
clinic, over 1,300 people per year will find permanent housing through Caritas Village.   The
development was submitted to the City of Santa Rosa for entitlement review in September
2018 and will break ground in 2021.

Emergency Shelters

 Nightingale - Nightingale provides a total of 37 respite shelter beds for those who are
experiencing homelessness and are being discharged from the hospital.  Nightingale programs
are located in Sonoma and Napa County.  

 Family Support Center - With 138 beds, this Santa Rosa shelter helps families move from
homelessness to permanent housing as rapidly as possible. Services include housing focused
case management, referrals to other agencies, sobriety support groups, parenting skills
support, meals and children’s services including school coordination and childcare referrals.

 Samuel L Jones Hall - This program located in Santa Rosa provides 213 beds of year-round
emergency shelter for adults experiencing homelessness.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Programs (continued)

Homeless Services Programs

 Homeless Outreach Services Team (HOST)-  HOST provides outreach to people living in
unsheltered locations throughout Sonoma County, linking them to physical health, mental
health, and economic assistance services as well as to Coordinated Entry.  Project areas are
defined as anywhere unsheltered homeless persons are found, including, but not limited to,
waterways, trails, and encampments.  Services offered by HOST facilitate entry into housing
and improve the health and well-being of individuals experiencing homelessness.

 Coordinated Entry - Catholic Charities is the Coordinated Entry program operator for the
County of Sonoma, providing streamlined countywide access to housing, shelter, and services
for people experiencing or at imminent risk of homelessness. Coordinated Entry prioritizes
individuals and families for permanent housing or temporary shelter based on assessment of
vulnerability and needs using a standardized, nationally-recognized assessment tool to ensure
those experiencing homelessness have equal access to housing and resources. Coordinated
Entry reduces the length of time people experience homelessness and promotes individual
choice of services and housing. 

 Homelessness Diversion - The Diversion program works with persons in Sonoma County
presenting for Coordinated Entry services to identify solutions other than entering homeless
services. It also provides supportive services for persons at-risk of homelessness who seek
assistance, but are ineligible for, the Coordinated Entry project.  Diversion services may
include rent or utility assistance and tailored support services to stabilize low-income families
or individuals at imminent risk of homelessness.

 Homeless Service Center (HSC) - The HSC, located in Santa Rosa and offers a drop-in day
program for adult men and women experiencing homelessness. Dignity services provided on
site include free lockers, showers, laundry, telephone, mail service, and program referrals. The
HSC serves between 1,800 and 2,000 people annually.  

Immigration

 Immigration Services - The Federal Department of Justice accredits the Catholic Charities
immigration office and staff who provide free or low-cost immigration legal consultations and
education on immigration benefits and new federal laws, reunite families, help individuals
become U.S. Citizens, assist immigrant victims of domestic violence and human trafficking,
and empower immigrants to become more fully involved in civic life.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Programs (continued)

Community and Parish Services 

 Community Connections - Community connections provides health education and enrollment
assistance for public nutrition and medical benefits in Sonoma, Lake, Napa and Mendocino
Counties.  Supporting services include financial education and coaching, income tax
preparation for low income families, and community resource referrals.

 Rural Food Program (RFP) - The RFP distributes free food to low income members of the
community at sites throughout Sonoma and Lake Counties, including the Eat Fresh
distributions at Catholic Charities Santa Rosa headquarters.

Housing Programs

 Housing Counseling - Catholic Charities is one of only two HUD-certified housing counseling
agencies in Sonoma County that provides counseling on rental issues, occupancy problems,
and assistance with Section 8 housing. 

 Palms Inn Permanent Supportive Housing - Previously a 104-unit motel, the Palms Inn was
converted into Permanent Supportive Housing for Veterans and chronically homeless
individuals. Catholic Charities manages 44 of the units for individuals who were chronically
homeless and provides 24/7 site support for Veterans living at The Palms.

 Permanent Supportive Housing Master Lease Program - Through individual homes or
apartments master leased by Catholic Charities in Sonoma County, vulnerable adults
experiencing homelessness access permanent housing with ongoing support services.

 Rapid Re-housing Program (RRH) - RRH provides rent and utility assistance, housing
counseling, and case management to low-income households in Sonoma County.

 Rainbow House - Homeless families (up to 50 mothers and children a year) live in this
transitional housing program in Napa and receive comprehensive support services to access
permanent housing, improve income and education, and develop life skills.

 Imola House - Persons with disabilities are offered one of eight subsidized apartments along
with ongoing case management support.

Senior Programs

 Shaw Memory Care Center -  The Shaw Memory Care Center (the "Center") is a state-
licensed care program that provides a full day program for adults living with memory loss
diagnosis.  The Center operates five days a week, giving family members respite from care-
giving while the loved ones diagnosed with memory loss participate in social programs to
support their overall quality of life. The Center also offers support groups for family members
and a registered nurse on staff.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Senior Programs (continued)

 The CARES Program - The Cares Program provides free private transportation for seniors no
longer able to drive so they can access medical appointments and attend to grocery shopping
and other errands.  

 I'm Home Alone (IHA) - IHA volunteers make daily telephone calls to seniors and other
homebound adults to ensure clients are well.  Over 1,000 individuals are contacted annually.

Social Enterprise

Restyle Marketplace - Catholic Charities operates a thrift store that sells donated merchandise to
create revenue for the agency, expand community awareness of agency services and programs,
and provide job skills development and community service opportunities for volunteers.

Disaster Relief and Recovery

Wildfire Recovery Disaster Case Management (DCM) -  Focused on long term recovery for those
affected by wildfires in Sonoma, Lake, Mendocino and Napa Counties. The agency began
providing these services after devastating fires in Lake County in 2015 and expanded the program
significantly after the 2017 firestorms in Napa and Sonoma Counties. DCM assists individual
community members in making a full recovery by providing services in collaboration with
partnering agencies. DCM provides case management services for locating permanent housing
and returning to the pre-disaster housing status.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The financial statements of Catholic Charities are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
specific to nonprofit organizations. Catholic Charities's activities and net assets are classified as
either net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions according to the
terms of the various contributions, grants and bequests and donors' wishes or interests.

 Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and
available to support general operations. 

 Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will
be met by actions of Catholic Charities and/or the passage of time. Net assets with donor
restrictions also include the portion of donor-restricted endowment funds and accumulated
earnings that are restricted for the passage of time, until such funds are appropriated for
expenditure by Catholic Charities, in addition to donor-restricted endowment funds to be held
in perpetuity. 
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change in accounting principle

In June 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards
Update ("ASU") 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made which clarifies the
criteria for evaluating whether a transaction should be accounted for as contribution or as an
exchange transaction and whether a contribution is conditional or unconditional. Catholic
Charities adopted ASU 2018-08 with a date of the initial application of July 1, 2019, using the
modified retrospective method. 

The adoption of ASU 2018-08 did not have a significant impact on Catholic Charities' financial
position, result of operations, or cash flows. The Organization has evaluated contributions
received and contributions made and has determined that there is no change as a result of the
adoption of the standard.

Revenue and support

Revenue and support are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use
of the related assets are limited by donor-imposed restrictions, either for a specific purpose,
passage of time or assets to be held in perpetuity.  Expirations of purpose or time imposed
restrictions on net assets with donor restrictions (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been
fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as a reclassification to net
assets without donor restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as
increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by
explicit donor stipulation or by law. 

Revenue recognition

Revenue, other than from contributions and government grants, is recognized in the period in
which the service has been provided and the performance obligation fulfilled. Program services
revenue consists primarily of fees for housing, counseling, and immigration services and is
recognized as services are performed. Rental income includes rent received from clients at
various Catholic Charities housing facilities and is recognized as they are received.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributions and promises to give

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenue in the period
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional; that is
when the barrier has been overcome and right of release/right of return no longer exists.
Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. Contributions
that are not expected to be collected until after year-end are considered contributions receivable.
Contributions receivable with due dates extending beyond one year are recorded at the present
value of their estimated future cash flows. The discount on these amounts is computed using risk
adjusted market interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received plus an
additional risk premium factor. The discount rate used at June 30, 2020 was 5.0%. Amortization
of the discount is recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed
restrictions, if any, on the contributions. Catholic Charities maintains allowances for doubtful
accounts based on an assessment of a donor's ability to make pledged payments and the estimated
cash realization from amounts due from a donor. The allowances are assessed by management on
a regular basis. In addition, management evaluates historical loss experience, financial condition
of a donor and current economic conditions that lead to default. These estimates may differ from
actual results. If the financial condition of a donor deteriorates in the future, impacting the donor's
ability to make payments, an increase to the allowance might be required or the allowance may
not be sufficient to cover actual losses. 

The Diocese of Santa Rosa raises funds on behalf of Catholic Charities and deposits the funds
raised in the Catholic Community Foundation of the Diocese of Santa Rosa until donated to
Catholic Charities. As of June 30, 2020, Catholic Charities had a balance held at Catholic
Community Foundation of $368,963. This balance is not reflected in the Statement of Financial
Position at June 30, 2020. 

Contributed goods and services

Donated goods and services consist of food, service and supplies received for distribution to
needy families and, donated building facilities and equipment used by Catholic Charities. In-kind
contributions are reflected as contributions at their fair value at date of donation and are reported
as support without donor restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how donated assets
must be used. Contributed services are reflected in the financial statements at the fair value of the
services received. The contributions of services are recognized if the services received (a) create
or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.
Amounts included as components of revenues and expenses for the year ended June 30, 2020
totaled $419,341. 

Program services are conducted in part by generous donations of time from volunteers.  The value
of this contributed time, while important to Catholic Charities, is not reflected in the
accompanying financial statements as these services do not meet the recognition criteria. 
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are generally received under contracts from federal, state, county and city
agencies. These contracts are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/ or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when
Catholic Charities has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions. Catholic Charities has elected a simultaneous release option to account for these
grants and contracts and thus are recorded as grants and contracts without donor restriction upon
satisfaction of the barriers. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures or
performing the required services are reported as deferred revenue. Catholic Charities received
cost-reimbursable grants of $4,601,730 that have not been recognized at June 30, 2020 because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred. There was no advance payments received
under these contracts as of June 30, 2020. 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of all cash on hand and all demand deposits maintained at
banking institutions. Catholic Charities maintains cash balances at institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. 

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value.  The fair values of equity securities are determined
primarily by quoted prices in active markets. The fair values of fixed income securities are based
on quoted market prices when available, or quotes as provided by the fund managers at the
valuation date. Pooled investment funds are valued at the net asset value per unit or percentage of
ownership as reported by the funds. Due to the inherent uncertainty of valuation of non-
marketable investments, those estimated values may differ significantly from the values that
would have been used had a ready market for the securities existed, and the differences could be
material. Investments received through gifts are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Gains and losses that result from market fluctuations are recognized in the period such
fluctuations occur. Realized gains or losses resulting from sales or maturities represent the
difference between the original cost of the investment and the proceeds received from the sale of
securities. Dividend and interest income are accrued when earned.

Grants receivable

Grants receivable consist of amounts due from government entities under cost reimbursement
agreements. At June 30, 2020, management determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts
was required, as all amounts are considered collectible.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated or amortized using the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives of 3 to 39 years. Contributed property and equipment is
recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions
that specify how the assets are to be used are reported as revenues with donor restrictions. In the
absence of donor stipulations, all contributions of property and equipment are recorded as
revenues without donor restrictions and depreciated or amortized over the asset's estimated useful
life. Catholic Charities capitalizes property and equipment if cost equals or exceeds $5,000.

Accrued compensated absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of Catholic
Charities.  Sick leave benefits are accumulated for each employee.  The employees do not gain a
vested right to accumulated sick leave. Accumulated employee sick leave benefits are not
recognized as liabilities of Catholic Charities since payment of such benefits is not probable.
Therefore, personal leave benefits are recorded as expenses in the period personal leaves are
taken.

Reserve for unemployment

Catholic Charities reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all benefits
paid to former employees. As of June 30, 2020, there were no reserves recognized for
unemployment claims. 

Fair value measurements

The guidance for fair value measurements established a framework for measuring fair value, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined as the exchange price
that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most
advantageous market for the assets or liabilities in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Subsequent changes in fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities are recognized in the change in net assets when they occur.

Accounting standards for fair value measurements includes a fair value hierarchy. Valuation
techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect assumptions market participants would
use in pricing an asset or liability based on market data obtained from independent sources while
unobservable inputs reflect a reporting entity's pricing based upon their own market assumptions.
There have been no changes in valuation techniques for the year ended June 30, 2020.

The fair value hierarchy consists of the following three levels:

 Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical investments.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

 Level 2 - Pricing inputs, including broker quotes, are those other than exchange quoted prices
in active markets, are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date for which
the fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.

 Level 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and includes situations where
there is little, if any, market activity for the investments and may require a high level of
judgment to determine the fair value.

Functional expenses

Catholic Charities' costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis by department. Direct costs associated with specific programs
are recorded as program expenses. Program expenses may include allocable management and
general and fundraising expenses. Expenses for capital projects primarily include personnel and
professional service expenses related to Caritas Village that are included in the Statement of
Functional Expenses, but capitalized as property and equipment. 

Income tax status

Catholic Charities is a tax-exempt, nonprofit corporation under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Taxation Code. Continuance of such
exemption is subject to compliance with regulations and review of the activities by taxing
authorities. Catholic Charities is not aware of any transactions that would affect its tax-exempt
status.

Catholic Charities has evaluated its current tax positions and has concluded that as of June 30,
2020, Catholic Charities does not have any significant uncertain tax positions for which a liability
would be necessary.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summarized comparative information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total
but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Accordingly,
such information should be read in conjunction with Catholic Charities financial statements as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2019, from which the summarized comparative information was
derived. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year information to conform to the
current year presentation.

3. PROMISES TO GIVE

Promises to give consisted of the following:

Amounts due in less than one year $ 2,708,158
Amounts due in one to five years 934,173

3,642,331
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (195,456)
Less discount on long-term promises to give (77,288)

$ 3,369,587

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Land $ 2,831,908
Buildings 8,566,296
Land improvements 12,690
Computers and software 35,288
Furniture and fixtures 38,228
Vehicles 251,275
Construction in progress 4,720,052

16,455,737
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,154,213)

$ 13,301,524

Depreciation expense for the year-ended June 30, 2020 was $265,808. 
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

5. INVESTMENTS

Investments consisted of the following:

Equity securities $ 199,632
Fixed income securities 162,988
U.S. Treasury Bills 6,411,673
Pooled investment funds 92,068

$ 6,866,361

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, Catholic Charities' assets at
fair value as of June 30, 2020:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Equity securities $ 199,632 $ - $ - $ 199,632
Fixed income securities - 162,988 - 162,988
U.S. Treasury Bills 6,411,673 - - 6,411,673

$ 6,611,305 $ 162,988 $ - 6,774,293

Investments measured at net asset
value* 92,068

$ 6,866,361

*In accordance with ASU 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosures for
Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent),
pooled investment funds that were measured at net asset value per share have not been classified
in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the line items presented in the statement of financial
position.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

6. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisted of the following:

Vacation $ 388,323
Payroll and other payroll related 394,604
Unemployment payable 109,421
Accrued workers compensation 119,218
Insurance payable 116,295
Rent deposits payable 26,056
Accrued construction costs 383,758
Other accrued expenses 76,135

$ 1,613,810

7. LINE OF CREDIT

Catholic Charities has a line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of $800,000 and accrues
interest at the bank's prime rate plus one percent. The interest rate as of June 30, 2020 was 4.25%.
There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2020.  The line of credit is
secured by Catholic Charities' assets including real property and all personal property (tangible
and intangible). The line of credit held a maturity date of August 1, 2020 but was renewed in
October 2020, extending the maturity date through August 1, 2021.

Catholic Charities also has a line of credit with Catholic Community Foundation, funded by the
Diocese of Santa Rosa. There is no maximum borrowing limit on the line of credit, but monies
withdrawn must be replaced as soon as is practical, or within one calendar year from the date of
borrowing. The line of credit does not bear interest but charges an annual administrative fee of
0.50%.  As of  June 30, 2020, there was no outstanding balance on the line of credit.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

8. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM 

In April 2020, Catholic Charities received loan proceeds of $2,149,555 from a promissory note
issued by Exchange Bank, under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") which was
established under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security ("CARES") Act and is
administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration. The term of the loan is two years and
the annual interest rate is 1.00%. Payments of principal and interest are deferred for the first six
months of the loan. Under the terms of the CARES Act, PPP loan recipients can apply for and be
granted forgiveness for all or a portion of the loans granted under PPP. Such forgiveness will be
determined based on the use of the loan proceeds for payroll costs, rent and utility expenses and
the maintenance of workforce and compensation levels with certain limitations. Catholic
Charities believes it has met the PPP's eligibility criteria and has concluded that the PPP loan
represents, in substance, a grant that is expected to be forgiven, and accordingly has accounted
for the PPP loan as a conditional contribution. Proceeds received under the PPP loan are
recognized as revenue when Catholic Charities has incurred expenditures in compliance with the
promissory note provisions and when the conditions have been substantially met. For the year
ended June 30, 2020, Catholic Charities recognized $1,239,884 in Paycheck Protection Program
grant revenue based on qualifying expenditures under the PPP program that are expected to be
forgiven. The proceeds from the PPP loan that have not been recognized as revenue as of June 30,
2020 total $909,671 and are reported as a refundable advance liability. These funds are
anticipated to be forgiven and recognized as revenue during the next fiscal year as the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

9. NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are detailed as follows:

Note in the amount of $1,100,000 payable to Summit State Bank secured by
and used to acquire property for the development of an affordable housing
project in Santa Rosa, California for needy individuals and families; entered
into in June 2015.  Interest only payments accrued starting July 10, 2015 for
36 months at 4.25% interest. The first $100,000 of accrued interest, which
was reached in 2018, was applied against an interest reserve and was added
to the principle balance of the note. Starting July 10, 2018, interest and
principle payments are due monthly for 119 months with an interest rate at
the U.S. Treasury securities rate, adjusted to a constant five year maturity
plus 3.00%.  The note matures June 2028 with a balloon payment for all
remaining interest and principle. $ 937,121

Note payable to the Sonoma County Community Development Commission
was entered into in May 2018 to use for a portion of planning, design, and
other eligible predevelopment costs for Caritas Center, the proposed
emergency housing, day center, and services center for homeless households
and other extremely-low to low-income households.  The note is secured by
a Deed of Trust and bears 3% simple interest.  The note matures the earlier
of (i) the thirtieth (30th) anniversary of the date that the permanent, post-
construction financing for the project is closed; or (ii) the thirty-fifth (35th)
anniversary of the date of the note. 199,250

Note payable to the Housing Authority of the City of Santa Rosa to acquire
and develop an affordable housing project, entered into June 2015.
Payments under this note shall only be required to the extent of surplus
development costs and 75% of surplus cash from the housing project. The
note is secured by land and building and bears 3% simple interest.  The note
matures in June 2045. 750,000

Note payable to the City of Napa used to acquire housing for needy
individuals and families; entered into in February and June 2003. Net
positive cash flows from the property, if any, are payable to the City of
Napa as an annual payment of interest. The notes are secured by land and
buildings. The note bear simple interest of 4% and mature in 2023. 154,287

Note payable to the City of Napa for rehabilitation of housing for needy
individuals and families; entered into in June 2009. The note is secured by
land and buildings. Payment is due when note matures or to the extent
property demonstrates residual annual net cash flow. The note bears simple
interest of 4% and matures in 2029. 40,231
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

9. NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Notes payable to the County of Napa used to acquire housing for needy
individuals and families; entered into in April 2001 and September 2002.
Net positive cash flows from the property, if any, are payable to the County
of Napa. The notes are secured by land and building and bear 0% interest.
The notes mature in 2041 and 2042. 234,500

2,315,389

$ 2,315,389

The future maturities of the notes payable are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2021 $ 38,745
2022 40,533
2023 42,403
2024 44,360
2025 46,407

Thereafter 2,102,941

$ 2,315,389

Certain notes of Catholic Charities include covenants. Catholic Charities was in compliance with
all covenants as of June 30, 2020, other than certain covenants required on two of the outstanding
note balances. In November 2019, the two funding agencies related to the notes for which
Catholic Charities was not in compliance provided a waiver of default on the failed covenants as
of June 30, 2020. 
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

10. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following:

Restricted for a specific purpose
Caritas Village development project $ 3,223,251
Family support center 111,056
Homeless 720,452
Housing 152,866
Immigration 24,291
Community Connections 1,475,802
Fire Relief 468,736

6,176,454

Restricted for a period of time
Pledges receivable, net of allowance 3,446,875
Reserve of cash - main office 277,066
Buildings and land, net of related debt, to house needy individuals and

families through 2042 - Napa County 619,889
Reserve of cash to house needy individuals and families through 2042 -

Napa County 105,707
Accumulated endowment earnings 183,530
Building and land, net of related debt, to house needy individuals and

families over buildings useful life - Santa Rosa 92,954
Cash value of life insurance policy for which Catholic Charities is the

beneficiary 41,253
4,767,274

To be held in perpetuity 179,090

$ 11,122,818
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

10.  NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions released from restriction during the year were as follows:

Purpose restrictions
Caritas Village $ 1,679,544
Family Support Center 571,173
Homeless 405,671
Housing 177,634
Immigration 320,951
Community Connections 1,597,537
Senior Services 13,104
Fire Relief 1,008,416
Other 12,393

5,786,423
Hope Works Wonders - pledges 344,190
Reserve of cash - main office 12,690
Building and land, net of related debt, to house needy individuals and

families over buildings useful life - Napa County 76,088
Building and land, net of related debt, to house needy individuals and

families over buildings useful life - Santa Rosa 7,253
Cash value of life insurance policy for which Catholic Charities is the

beneficiary 1,429

$ 6,228,073

The Caritas Village development project included in net assets with donor restrictions represents
contributions received for the acquisition and development of the property, which is to be used
for a homeless shelter, affordable housing and administrative facilities. 

Buildings and land used to house needy individuals and families are included in net assets with
donor restrictions because either the local governments that contributed financially towards the
property acquisitions have stipulated that these properties be used to house needy individuals and
families through 2042 or the donors stipulated that the buildings be used over their useful lives to
provide housing for needy individuals and families.

Catholic Charities has received conditional contributions totaling $7,000,000, restricted for the
Caritas Village project. During 2018, Catholic Charities recognized $1,500,000 of the
contributions upon satisfaction of certain terms of the agreements. The remaining $5,500,000 has
not been recognized as the funds are conditional upon Catholic Charities meeting certain
specified stipulations which had not been satisfied as of June 30, 2020. Catholic Charities
received $3,500,000 of the remaining $5,500,000 in funding which is reported as deferred
revenue as of  June 30, 2020.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

11. ENDOWMENT

Catholic Charities' endowment totaling $179,090 consists of donor-restricted endowment funds.
The balance of the endowment is recorded as part of investments on the Statement of Financial
Position. All income earned on the endowment fund investment is treated as restricted and used
from time to time to fund restricted activities.

Interpretation of relevant law

The Board of Directors of Catholic Charities has interpreted the California enacted version of the
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act ("UPMIFA") as allowing Catholic
Charities to appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an endowment fund as the
Catholic Charities determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes and duration for which
the endowment fund is established, subject to the intent of the donor as expressed in the gift
instrument. Unless stated otherwise in the gift instrument, the assets in an endowment fund shall
be donor-restricted assets until appropriated for expenditure by the Board of Directors. The
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not restricted in perpetuity is
restricted for the passage of time, until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by
Catholic Charities in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Board of Directors considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund

(2) The purposes of Catholic Charities and the donor-restricted endowment fund

(3) General economic conditions

(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments

(6) Other resources of Catholic Charities

(7) The investment policies of Catholic Charities

Spending policy

Each year up to 2.21% of the investment balance (calculated on a twelve quarter rolling average
of the market value) will be made available for appropriation. Catholic Charities objective is to
maintain the original fair value of the endowment assets held in perpetuity as well as to provide
additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

Funds with deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires Catholic Charities to retain as
a fund of perpetual duration. There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2020.
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June 30, 2020

11. ENDOWMENT (continued)

Investment policy, strategies, and objectives

Catholic Charities has adopted an investment policy for endowment assets that attempts to
maximize total return consistent with an acceptable level of risk.  Under this policy, as approved
by the Finance Committee of the Board, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that achieve price and yield results commensurate with assuming a
moderate level of investment risk. Catholic Charities expects its endowment funds, over time, to
provide an average rate of return of approximately 5% percent annually. Actual returns in any
given year may vary from this amount. 

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, Catholic Charities relies on a total return in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield.
Catholic Charities targets a diversified asset allocation that helps to achieve its long-term
objectives within prudent risk constraints. 

Endowment composition

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Without Donor
Restrictions

Original Gift
Amount

Accumulated
Gains (Losses)

and Other Total

Donor-restricted
endowment funds $ - $ 179,090 $ 183,530 $ 362,620

Changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Without Donor
Restrictions

With Donor
Restrictions Total

Balance, June 30, 2019 $ - $ 352,325 $ 352,325

Investment return
Interest and dividend income - 6,442 6,442
Net appreciation (realized and

unrealized) - 3,853 3,853

Balance, June 30, 2020 $ - $ 362,620 $ 362,620
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
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June 30, 2020

12. PENSION PLAN

Catholic Charities is a participant in the Diocese of Santa Rosa Lay Defined Benefit Plan, a
multi-employer pension plan (the "MEP Plan") which was frozen on June 30, 2014. Contribution
requirements and liabilities are calculated in total on behalf of all plan participants. Contributions
for each participating employer are based on an allocation of liability at freeze date. Catholic
Charities was required to fund 8% of the total annual contributions for the year ended June 30,
2020. Multi-employer plan costs to Catholic Charities amounted to $262,035 for the year ended
June 30, 2020. 

Catholic Charities was notified that the funded status of the MEP Plan was below its target
liability. To help cover the shortfall, for the year ended June 30, 2020, participating employers
were required to make a contribution equal to 3% of total gross wages for all active employees
working 20 or more hours per week. The MEP Plan is also exploring alternative sources of
funding and contribution levels to mitigate any further risk. 

The following information is based on the MEP Plan actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020:

Total fair value of plan assets                         $32,071,000
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits                               $56,085,000
Indicated level of funding 57.2%

Plan information for the MEP Plan is not publicly available. Catholic Charities is unable to
provide additional quantitative information without undue cost and effort.  

On July 1, 2014, Catholic Charities joined the Diocese defined contribution retirement plan (the
"Plan"). Catholic Charities will contribute 5.50% of each eligible employee's annual
compensation to the defined contribution retirement plan.  Employee's that meet certain age and
service criteria will receive additional employer contributions as a transition benefit. Employer
contributions to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $323,499.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Concentration

 Revenue, support and receivables - Catholic Charities is dependent on grants from the U.S.
Departments of Housing and Urban Development, Homeland Security, Health and Human
Services, and Agriculture. If the level of these grants and support varies, there may be an
adverse effect upon the level of types of activities and program services offered by Catholic
Charities. For the year ended June 30, 2020, 32% of government grants revenue was from
either direct or indirect awards received from those departments. In addition, approximately
80% of grants receivable at June 30, 2020 were due from four grantors, including three
government entities and one non-governmental entity. 
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Concentration (continued)

 Investments - Catholic Charities' credit risk is inherent principally in its investments. Credit
risk is limited by diversifying Catholic Charities' investments among a variety of high quality
financial institutions, and the composition and maturities are regularly monitored by
management. The maximum loss on the investments would be the carrying amount in the
financial statements, less amounts insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation
(SIPC). Balances may periodically exceed SIPC limits.

Restrictions on real properties

Certain loan and grant agreements with governmental agencies impose restrictions on the
operations of the properties owned by Catholic Charities, including maximum tenant income
limitations, maximum rents chargeable and the tenants' history of homelessness. Such tenant
qualifications are monitored by Catholic Charities on an ongoing basis.  If such agreements and
qualifications are not met, related loans and revenue received could become payable to the
agencies.

Catholic Charities real properties are subject to liens by lenders or grantors who provided funding
for the acquisition or development of the properties. None of these properties may be sold or
hypothecated without the consent of the secured parties.

Grants and contracts

Grants and contracts awarded to Catholic Charities are subject to the funding agencies' criteria,
contract terms and regulations under which expenditures may be charged and are subject to audit
under such terms, regulations and criteria. Occasionally such audits may determine that certain
costs incurred against the grants do not comply with the established criteria that govern them. In
such cases, Catholic Charities could be held responsible for repayments to the funding agency for
the costs or be subject to the reductions of future funding in the amount of the costs.

Forgivable loans

During the year ended June 30, 2020, a forgivable loan in the amount of $81,241, along with
accrued interest of $20,650, was forgiven and has been recorded in private grant and contribution
revenue in the accompanying statement of activities upon successfully fulfilling the conditions on
the loan. This loan was to be forgiven if Catholic Charities complied with certain terms and
conditions of the loan throughout the loan term. These conditions included, but were not limited
to, the continued use of the property as emergency shelters, transitional housing, or other housing
properties for needy individuals and families.  Catholic Charities received notice in September
2019 that the loan was reconveyed and forgiven upon successfully completing the terms of the
agreement. 

27



Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Litigation

Catholic Charities is a party to certain claims in the normal course of operation. While the results
of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that the final outcome of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

Operating leases

Catholic Charities leases commercial space and equipment under operating lease agreements
which expire on varying dates through December 2025. Rent expense for the year amounted to
$1,006,337.

The scheduled minimum lease payments under the lease terms are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2021 $ 648,898
2022 595,939
2023 580,509
2024 580,509
2025 281,583

$ 2,687,438

14. LIQUIDITY

As part of Catholic Charities's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial
assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. 

As part of this policy,  Catholic Charities strives to hold in its investment account a balance of
securities equal to at least the balance of net assets with donor restrictions that can be readily
liquidated to fulfill grantors obligations. 

Cash and cash equivalents include $277,066 designated internally for long term capital
replacement at Airway Building planned for the roof and HVAC system, and $105,707 which is
restricted by Napa County Housing Authorities through 2042 for capital improvements on the
building loan and will not be available in the upcoming year. 

Investments include endowment funds consisting of donor-restricted endowments of $179,090
and income from endowments of $183,530 that is available to use for specific programs.  No
funds from the endowment funds have been drawn as of June 30, 2020. 
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14. LIQUIDITY (continued)

Catholic Charities does not have any long-term investments.  All U.S. Treasury Bills are
redeemable after 3 months and could be liquidated within one month from each other.  There are
certain limitations on the availability of investment funds which are restricted to certain activities
designated by funders.

Catholic Charities received $3,500,000 during 2019 for the Caritas Village project.  These funds
and earnings from the investments are currently restricted for use and will only be available to
support the project once certain conditions are met to recognize the funds. 

Prepaid expenses and and other assets of approximately $301,000 are not readily available to be
converted into cash. 

Short-term promises to give consist of unconditional promises to give expected to be received
within one year from June 30, 2020. The Organization is currently in a capital campaign raising
funds to build the new program site Caritas Village (see Note 1) which are not available for
general operations. Short-term promises to give not subject to donor-restrictions will be available
to support general operations of Catholic Charities. 

The Organization has a line of credit available for use. The balance available at June 30, 2020 is
$800,000.  

The following is a quantitative disclosure which describes assets that are available within one year
of June 30, 2020 to fund general expenditures and other obligations as they become due:

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,116,825
Investments 6,866,361
Grants receivable 2,852,529
Promises to give, net 3,369,587

17,205,302

Less: amounts unavailable for general expenditure within one year:
Donor-imposed restrictions for a specified purpose (6,176,454)
Donor-imposed restrictions for a specified time (excluding pledges receivable

to be collected in one year) (2,059,116)
Donor-imposed restrictions to be held in perpetuity (179,090)
Deferred restricted conditional contributions (3,500,000)
Designated capital replacement reserves (277,066)

(12,191,726)

$ 5,013,576
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15. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

On  March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a novel strain of coronavirus
("COVID-19") a global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures
worldwide.  The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through
mandated and voluntary closings of businesses and shelter in place orders, including California,
where Catholic Charities' is headquartered. In response, the U.S. Government enacted the CARES
Act, which includes significant provisions to provide relief and assistance to affected
organizations. As a qualifying 501(c)(3) organization, the Organization received a PPP loan
through the CARES Act (see Note 8).

Impacts to Catholic Charities' operations include disruptions and restrictions on employees’
ability to work and fluctuations in investment balances due to the effect of the pandemic on the
financial markets. While the disruption from COVID-19 is currently expected to be temporary,
there is considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings and shelter in place orders
and the ultimate financial impact. It is at least reasonably possible that this matter will negatively
impact Catholic Charities, however, the financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time.

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 3, 2021, Catholic Charities received loan proceeds of $2,000,000 from a promissory
note issued by Exchange Bank, under the PPP established by the CARES Act. This represents
Catholic Charities' second loan under the PPP. The term of the loan is five years and the annual
interest rate is 1.00%. Payments of principal and interest are deferred up to the first ten months of
the loan. Under the terms of the CARES Act, PPP loan recipients can apply for and be granted
forgiveness for all or a portion of the loans granted under PPP. Such forgiveness will be
determined based on the use of the loan proceeds.

Catholic Charities has evaluated subsequent events through March 3, 2021, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Other than as described above, no subsequent events have
occurred that would have a material impact on the presentation of Catholic Charities' financial
statements. 
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SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS AND SCHEDULES



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Santa Rosa, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Catholic Charities of
the Diocese of Santa Rosa (a California nonprofit corporation) (''Catholic Charities''),  which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 3, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Catholic Charities's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Catholic Charities's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Catholic Charities's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  

We did identify one deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs that we consider to be a material weakness listed as item 2020-001.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Catholic Charities's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion.  

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Catholic Charities's Response to Findings

Catholic Charities's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and prior year findings.  Catholic Charities's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Catholic Charities's
internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Catholic Charities's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ArmaninoLLP

San Francisco, California

March 3, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Santa Rosa, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa (a California nonprofit corporation)
(''Catholic Charities'')'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Catholic Charities's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.  Catholic Charities's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Catholic Charities's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance").  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Catholic Charities's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Catholic Charities's
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Catholic Charities complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Catholic Charities is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Catholic Charities's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Catholic Charities's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weakness or significant deficiencies.  

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

ArmaninoLLP

San Francisco, California

March 3, 2021
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pass-Through
Entity

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal CFDA Identifying  Total Federal Passed Through
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

Expenditures of Federal Awards

U.S. Department of Education
Pass-through program from:

State of California
Adult Education and Family Literacy Act 84.002A V002A190005 $ 18,965 $ -

Total U.S. Department of Education 18,965 -

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-through programs from:

Sonoma County Human Services Department
Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part B,
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044

AA-CCSR-ADCT-
1920 102,658 -

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services 102,658 -

Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct awards

Supportive Housing Program 14.235 585,823 -
Pass-through programs from:

City of Santa Rosa -
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 298,980 -

City of Napa -
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 C2019-309 7,012 -

County of Sonoma (Sonoma County Community
Development Commission) -

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA164L9T041801 381,106 44,496
County of Napa -

Mortgages Insurance for Single Room Occupancy
Projects 14.184 190156B 69,000 -

Catholic Charities USA -

Housing Counseling Assistance Program 14.169
HC170011012,
HC190011024 33,790 -

Total Department of Housing and Urban
Development 1,375,711 44,496

Department of Agriculture
Pass-through programs from:

Catholic Charities of California, Inc. 
State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561

18-3058; 17-7007;
17-7007A-2 491,816 -

State of California -
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 49-3016-OH 39,621 -

Total Department of Agriculture 531,437 -

 U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Direct awards

USCSIS Citizenship and Integration Grant 97.010 41,384 -
Emergency Food and Shelter Program 97.024 8,000 -

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
are an integral part of this schedule.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pass-Through
Entity

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal CFDA Identifying  Total Federal Passed Through
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

49,384 -
Pass-through programs from:

Catholic Charities of California, Inc.
Disaster Case Management 97.088 17-STD-7020 590,325 144,549
Disaster Case Management 97.088 18-STD-7021 114,441 -

United Way -
Emergency Food and Shelter Program 97.024 32090800-013 18,200 -

County of Sonoma (Sonoma County Community
Development Commission) - -

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters) 97.036 29,000 -

Total  U.S. Department of Homeland Security 801,350 144,549

U.S. Department of the Treasury
Pass-through programs from:

United Way -
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA)
Coalition Program 21.009 20,000 -

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 20,000 -

U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
Direct awards

Adult Day Health Care Program 64.026 115,729 -
VA Homeless Providers Grant and Per Diem

Program 64.024 77,812 -
Total U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs 193,541 -

U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-through programs from:

County of Sonoma (Sonoma County Human Services
Department) -

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals
with Disabilities 20.513

AA-CCSR-5310-
1820 30,391 -

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 30,391 -

U.S. Department of Justice
Pass-through program from

Family Justice Center Sonoma County
Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of

Protection Orders Program 16.590 9,283 -
Pass-through program from County of Sonoma:

Crime Victim Assistance 16.582 11,706 -
Total U.S. Department of Justice 20,989 -

Corporation for National and Community Service
Pass-through programs from:

Catholic Charities USA
AmeriCorps 94.006 19DHVA001 7,352 -

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
are an integral part of this schedule.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pass-Through
Entity

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal CFDA Identifying  Total Federal Passed Through
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

Total Corporation for National and Community
Service 7,352 -

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 3,102,394 $ 189,045

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
are an integral part of this schedule.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2020

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the
federal award activity of Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa ("Catholic Charities")
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The information in
this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of  Catholic Charities, it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of  Catholic Charities.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or limited as to reimbursement.  Pass-
through entity identifying numbers are presented where available and applicable.

3. INDIRECT COST RATE

Catholic Charities has elected to not use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate for federal awards.
Catholic Charities applies indirect costs in accordance with the specific terms of its federal award
agreements. 
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster CFDA Number

Supportive Housing Program 14.235
Disaster Case Management 97.088

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

SECTION II - SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

_________________________________________________________

Finding number: 2020-001 Contribution Revenue Recognition

Criteria: Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as
revenue in the period received. 

Condition: The Organization did not recognize $1,000,000 related to an unconditional,
purpose restricted contribution that was received in June 2020.

Cause: The accounting and finance department of the Organization recorded the
contribution when the cash was received in August 2020 and was not aware that
the development department had previously received notification of the
contribution from the donor in June 2020.

Effect or potential
effect:

The Organization understated its contribution revenue and promises to give
receivable by $1,000,000.

Recommendation: We recommend management develop a comprehensive revenue recognition
policy to ensure the proper recognition of contributions in accordance with
GAAP. We recommend that this policy be distributed to both the development
and accounting staff to ensure both departments understand the criteria for
revenue recognition. The policy should include a detailed review of all
contribution and grant agreements that allow for the identification of donor
restrictions, conditions, and timing of revenue recognition. We also recommend
that development and accounting meet on a periodic basis to ensure all
contributions and promises to give that are received by development are
communicated to accounting on a timely basis.

Views of Responsible
Officials:

Management agrees with the finding.

SECTION III - SUMMARY OF FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There are no federal award findings to be reported.
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Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

There were no prior year findings.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
PAYEE DATA RECORD 
(Required when receiving payment from the State of California in lieu of IRS W-9 or W-7) 
STD 204 (Rev. 03/2021) 

Section 1 – Payee Information 
NAME (This is required. Do not leave this line blank. Must match the payee’s federal tax return) 

BUSINESS NAME, DBA NAME or DISREGARDED SINGLE MEMBER LLC NAME (If different from above) 

MAILING ADDRESS (number, street, apt. or suite no.) (See instructions on Page 2) 

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

Section 2 – Entity Type 
Check one (1) box only that matches the entity type of the Payee listed in Section 1 above. (See instructions on page 2) 

CORPORATION (see instructions on page 2)☐ SOLE PROPRIETOR / INDIVIDUAL 
☐ MEDICAL (e.g., dentistry, chiropractic, etc.)☐ SINGLE MEMBER LLC Disregarded Entity owned by an individual 

☐ PARTNERSHIP 
☐ ESTATE OR TRUST 

☐ LEGAL (e.g., attorney services) 

☐ EXEMPT (e.g., nonprofit) 

☐ ALL OTHERS 
Section 3 – Tax Identification Number 

Enter your Tax Identification Number (TIN) in the appropriate box.  The TIN must 
match the name given in Section 1 of this form. Do not provide more than one (1) TIN. 
The TIN is a 9-digit number. Note: Payment will not be processed without a TIN. 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

For Individuals, enter SSN. 
If you are a Resident Alien, and you do not have and are not eligible to get an 
SSN, enter your ITIN. 
Grantor Trusts (such as a Revocable Living Trust while the grantors are alive) may 
not have a separate FEIN. Those trusts must enter the individual grantor’s SSN. 
For Sole Proprietor or Single Member LLC (disregarded entity), in which the 
sole member is an individual, enter SSN (ITIN if applicable) or FEIN (FTB 
prefers SSN). 
For Single Member LLC (disregarded entity), in which the sole member is a 
business entity, enter the owner entity’s FEIN.  Do not use the disregarded 
entity’s FEIN. 
For all other entities including LLC that is taxed as a corporation or partnership, 
estates/trusts (with FEINs), enter the entity’s FEIN. 

Social  Security Number (SSN) or 
Individual Tax Identification Number (ITIN) 

___ ___ ___ -___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ ___ 

OR 

Federal Employer Identification Number
(FEIN) 

___ ___  - ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ 

Section 4 – Payee Residency Status (See instructions) 

     
  

 
  

   
       

     

     

 

   
        

 

 

  
     

 

   

 
      

     
 

      
    

 

    

  

    
  

  

 

  
 

  

   
                

              

 
       

  
      

  
  

   

  
   

   

   

   

☐ CALIFORNIA RESIDENT – Qualified to do business in California or maintains a permanent place of business in California. 

☐ CALIFORNIA NONRESIDENT – Payments to nonresidents for services may be subject to state income tax withholding. 

☐No services performed in California 
☐Copy of Franchise Tax Board waiver of state withholding is attached. 

Section 5 – Certification 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided on this document is true and correct. 
Should my residency status change, I will promptly notify the state agency below. 
NAME OF AUTHORIZED PAYEE REPRESENTATIVE TITLE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

SIGNATURE DATE TELEPHONE (include area code) 

Section 6 – Paying State Agency 
Please return completed form to: 
STATE AGENCY/DEPARTMENT OFFICE UNIT/SECTION 

MAILING ADDRESS FAX TELEPHONE (include area code) 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

Print Form Reset Form

Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Santa Rosa 

Santa Rosa, CA  95403

987 Airway Court

srcharities.org 

  

9     4 2       4    7   9     3    9    3

Len Marabella Chief Executive Officer lmarabella@srcharities.org

707-528-8712

CA Dept of HCD CDBG DR Housing Counseling (ReCover CA) 

2020 W. El Camino Ave, Suite 500 916-263-2771

Sacramento CA 95833 DR-HousingCounseling@hcd.ca.gov



     
  

 
  

 

 

 
 

 

 
  

  
   

  
 

 
  

    
   

   
     

       
      

  
      

 

     
       

 

  
 

  
 

   
  

     
 

   
   

 

 
 

 

   
  

  
    

 
 

 
 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
PAYEE DATA RECORD 
(Required when receiving payment from the State of California in lieu of IRS W-9 or W-7) 
STD 204 (Rev. 03/2021) 

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS 
Type or print the information on the Payee Data Record, STD 204 form.  Sign, date, and return to the state agency/department office address shown in Section 6.  
Prompt return of this fully completed form will prevent delays when processing payments. 

Information provided in this form will be used by California state agencies/departments to prepare Information Returns (Form1099).  
NOTE: Completion of this form is optional for Government entities, i.e. federal, state, local, and special districts. 

A completed Payee Data Record, STD 204 form, is required for all payees (non-governmental entities or individuals) entering into a transaction that may lead to a 
payment from the state. Each state agency requires a completed, signed, and dated STD 204 on file; therefore, it is possible for you to receive this form from 
multiple state agencies with which you do business. 

Payees who do not wish to complete the STD 204 may elect not to do business with the state. If the payee does not complete the STD 204 and the required 
payee data is not otherwise provided, payment may be reduced for federal and state backup withholding. Amounts reported on Information Returns (Form 1099) 
are in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and the California Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC). 

Section 1 – Payee Information 
Name – Enter the name that appears on the payee's federal tax return.  The name provided shall be the tax liable party and is subject to IRS TIN matching (when 
applicable). 
• Sole Proprietor/Individual/Revocable Trusts – enter the name shown on your federal tax return. 
• Single Member Limited Liability Companies (LLCs) that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner for federal tax purposes - enter the name of the 

individual or business entity that is tax liable for the business in section 1.  Enter the DBA, LLC name, trade, or fictitious name under Business Name. 
• Note: for the State of California tax purposes, a Single Member LLC is not disregarded from its owner, even if they may be disregarded at the Federal level. 
• Partnerships, Estates/Trusts, or Corporations – enter the entity name as shown on the entity’s federal tax return.  The name provided in Section 1 must match 

to the TIN provided in section 3.  Enter any DBA, trade, or fictitious business names under Business Name. 
Business Name – Enter the business name, DBA name, trade or fictitious name, or disregarded LLC name. 
Mailing Address – The mailing address is the address where the payee will receive information returns.  Use form STD 205, Payee Data Record Supplement 
to provide a remittance address if different from the mailing address for information returns, or make subsequent changes to the remittance address. 

Section 2 – Entity Type 
If the Payee in Section 1 is a(n)… THEN Select the Box for… 
Individual ● Sole Proprietorship ● Grantor (Revocable Living) Trust disregarded for federal tax purposes Sole Proprietor/Individual 
Limited Liability Company (LLC) owned by an individual and is disregarded for federal tax purposes Single Member LLC-owned by an individual 
Partnerships ● Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP) ● and, LLC treated as a Partnership Partnerships 
Estate ● Trust (other than disregarded Grantor Trust) Estate or Trust 
Corporation that is medical in nature (e.g., medical and healthcare services, physician care, nursery 
care, dentistry, etc. ● LLC that is to be taxed like a Corporation and is medical in nature 

Corporation-Medical 

Corporation that is legal in nature (e.g., services of attorneys, arbitrators, notary publics involving legal 
or law related matters, etc.) ● LLC that is to be taxed like a Corporation and is legal in nature 

Corporation-Legal 

Corporation that qualifies for an Exempt status, including 501(c) 3 and domestic non-profit corporations. Corporation-Exempt 
Corporation that does not meet the qualifications of any of the other corporation types listed above ● LLC 
that is to be taxed as a Corporation and does not meet any of the other corporation types listed above 

Corporation-All Other 

Section 3 – Tax Identification Number 
The State of California requires that all parties entering into business transactions that may lead to payment(s) from the state provide their Taxpayer 
Identification Number (TIN). The TIN is required by R&TC sections 18646 and 18661 to facilitate tax compliance enforcement activities and preparation of 
Form 1099 and other information returns as required by the IRC section 6109(a) and R&TC section 18662 and its regulations. 

Section 4 – Payee Residency Status 
Are you a California resident or nonresident? 
• A corporation will be defined as a "resident" if it has a permanent place of business in California or is qualified through the Secretary of State to do business in 

California. 
• A partnership is considered a resident partnership if it has a permanent place of business in California. 
• An estate is a resident if the decedent was a California resident at time of death. 
• A trust is a resident if at least one trustee is a California resident. 
o For individuals and sole proprietors, the term "resident" includes every individual who is in California for other than a temporary or transitory purpose and 

any individual domiciled in California who is absent for a temporary or transitory purpose.  Generally, an individual who comes to California for a purpose 
that will extend over a long or indefinite period will be considered a resident.  However, an individual who comes to perform a particular contract of short 
duration will be considered a nonresident. 

For information on Nonresident Withholding, contact the Franchise Tax Board at the numbers listed below: 
Withholding Services and Compliance Section:  1-888-792-4900             E-mail address: wscs.gen@ftb.ca.gov 
For hearing impaired with TDD, call:  1-800-822-6268                              Website: www.ftb.ca.gov 

Section 5 – Certification 
Provide the name, title, email address, signature, and telephone number of individual completing this form and date completed.  In the event that a SSN or ITIN is 
provided, the individual identified as the tax liable party must certify the form.  Note: the signee may differ from the tax liable party in this situation if the signee can 
provide a power of attorney documented for the individual. 

Section 6 – Paying State Agency 
This section must be completed by the state agency/department requesting the STD 204. 

Privacy Statement 
Section 7(b) of the Privacy Act of 1974 (Public Law 93-579) requires that any federal, state, or local governmental agency, which requests an individual to 
disclose their social security account number, shall inform that individual whether that disclosure is mandatory or voluntary, by which statutory or other authority 
such number is solicited, and what uses will be made of it. It is mandatory to furnish the information requested.  Federal law requires that payment for which the 
requested information is not provided is subject to federal backup withholding and state law imposes noncompliance penalties of up to $20,000. You have the 
right to access records containing your personal information, such as your SSN. To exercise that right, please contact the business services unit or the 
accounts payable unit of the state agency(ies) with which you transact that business. 

All questions should be referred to the requesting state agency listed on the bottom front of this form. 















































































































Admin CDBGDR Chart

I. ORG CHART - CDBG DR

*Bolded Positions directly Administer CDBG DR Housing Counseling Grant 

Chief Executive Officer
Len Marabella 

Chief Program Officer
Jennielynn Holmes

Chief Administrative Officer
Sharon Vaughn 

Director, Financial Stability & Crisis Response
Amy Holter

Controller
Alberto Diaz

Assistant Director, Community Recovery
Melissa Reese 

Assistant Director, Financial Stability
Vacant - Hiring 

Grants 
Accountants 

(3)

Staff 
Accountant

Grants
 Compliance 

Manager
Doria Trombetta

Senior Manager, 
Disaster 

Preparedness & 
Recovery 

Manager,
Community Recovery

Martha Zuniga

Program Support 
III, Community 

Recovery 

Manager
 Financial Stability 

Felix Carvajal 

Case Manager, 
Financial Stability III 

Program 
Support II, 
Financial 
Stability

Construction Analyst 

Case Manager, 
Community Recovery 

III 
HUD Certification 

Pending
Adrian Arias

Case Manager, 
Financial Stability 
II, HUD Certified
Maria Arreguin

Case Manager, 
Financial Stability II

Case Manager, 
Community Recovery 

II
Vacant - Hiring

Case Manager, 
Financial Stability 
II, HUD Certified

Rocio Salinas 

Case Manager, 
Financial Stability II, 

HUD Certified 
Verenice Portales

Case Manager, 
Financial Stability 

III, HUD 
Certification 

Pending       Wendy 
Gattoni 



CDBG DR Hous Counsel Avail Char

AVAILABILITY CHART

Title Immediate Availability

Yes Yes 10% 90%

No; open position Yes 10% 90%

Yes Yes 15% 85%

Yes Yes 15% 75%

Yes Yes 25% 75%

Yes; HUD Certified Yes 25% 75%

Yes; HUD Certified Yes 25% 75%

Yes; HUD Certified Yes 25% 75%

Availability in a 
Year

% for 
CDBG-DR 

Work

Time to 
other 

projects

Director, 
Financial 
Stability & Crisis 
Response

Assistant 
Director, 
Financial 
Stability

Assistant 
Director, 
Community 
Recovery

Manager, 
Financial 
Stability

Manager, 
Community 
Recovery

Case Manager, 
Financial 
Stability II

Case Manager, 
Financial 
Stability II

Case Manager, 
Financial 
Stability II



CDBG DR Hous Counsel Avail Char

No; not yet HUD Certified Yes 25% 75%

No; not yet HUD Certified Yes 75% 50%

No; not yet HUD Certified Yes 75% 50%

Case Manager, 
Financial 
Stability III

Case Manager, 
Community 
Recovery III

Case Manager, 
Community 
Recovery II
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